
2 0 1 2  A N N U A L  R E P O R T











1  2 0 1 2  A N N U A L  R E P O R T

LETTER TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS

C  9.37
M  74.66
Y  100
K  1.9

C  89.84
M  61.72
Y  44.92
K  28.91

Orange – Straight RBG build  to 4 Color Conversion – Original Blue

To Be a Leading Global Entertainment Brand Providing 
Powerful and Immersive Experiences

STARZ: Taking You Places 

Dear Fellow Stockholder,

2012 was a transformative year for Starz. In August, after 20 plus years as part of Liberty Media Corporation, Liberty’s board of directors determined 
Starz should become an independent, public company. In establishing an independent Starz, Liberty’s board noted your company’s ability to utilize 
its strong financial position to enable it to explore and act upon business enhancing strategies and Starz’s optimized capital structure, as well as the 
continuing growth trends in the premium and pay TV categories. We enthusiastically supported this decision and are truly excited about the business 
prospects we see for an independent Starz. In 2012, your company delivered a strong financial performance with continued significant free cash 
flow generation. 

As of December 31, 2012, our core networks - STARZ® and ENCORE® - served a combined 56 million subscribers, including 21.2 million at STARZ, 
and 34.8 million at ENCORE, making them the largest combined pair of premium channels in the U.S. That may come as a surprise to many of you, 
but what it really means is that Starz has strong and deep relationships with our distributors and content suppliers, and a wonderful platform to build 
and deliver growth enhancing content and services. 

Starz’s long-term output agreements with both Sony Pictures and Disney give us access to world-class theatrical content for years to come. Our 
distribution relationships with cable, satellite, and telco operators are in place and span all key multichannel providers. It is also important to note that 
our access to movies not only includes first-run features, but also a consistent pipeline of theatrical library content that comes to the STARZ networks 
most often in exclusive windows.

There can be no doubt the video media industry landscape is changing. Exciting media technologies and consumers’ continuing appetite for high-
quality television experiences are front-page news. Anyone who follows the premium content space closely also knows that one cannot solely 
depend on the viewership of theatrical movies to deliver a differentiated consumer proposition. One only needs to engage in chatter around the water 
cooler or on your favorite social networking site to know that more people are discussing exciting original TV series that are emblematic of premium 
TV. This is precisely the type of programming that we are developing as a robust cornerstone of our strategy. The cultural trends which have led to 
the rise in popularity of TV series have certainly not been lost on our distribution partners, and we can assure you, it has not been lost on us as we 
endeavor to make Starz a leader in the premium TV category.

In fact, the leadership team at Starz has more than 30 years of premium television and entertainment industry experience and the know-how and 
capabilities to transition Starz successfully from a movie-focused premium television service into a highly profitable, leading worldwide network 
spearheaded by quality original programming.

We have made it our first priority to economically increase the amount of original programming we air on our STARZ networks. We know that Starz’s 
future lies squarely in expanding our original programming slate to build off of a quality base of Hollywood theatrical movies. It is what consumers 
want and what our distributors are interested in. It will differentiate our brand and place your company in an even stronger competitive position. This 
is why we created a new, ambitious Starz mission statement: 

It is also why we adopted a more expansive brand positioning statement that gets to the heart of the significant ambitions we have for STARZ: 

For 2013, we aired the final season of the worldwide hit series “Spartacus,” which we not only broadcast, but also currently license in approximately 
200 territories worldwide. Following the series finale of “Spartacus,” we showcased the world premiere of our next new original series, “Da Vinci’s 
Demons.” David Goyer, co-writer of the Dark Knight movie trilogy, created “Da Vinci’s Demons” for Starz and gave audiences across the globe a fresh 
look at a young Leonardo da Vinci in this historical fantasy adventure series. The series had a global premiere in 120 countries, including distribution 
in English-speaking North America through our Starz Distribution operating segment. Following “Da Vinci’s Demons,” “Magic City” will premiere for its 
second season. This compelling show set in the glamorous, yet dangerous, world of Miami in the 1950s stars Jeffrey Dean Morgan, Olga Kurylenko, 
Golden Globe® nominee Danny Huston, and guest stars Academy Award® nominee James Caan. Our final series premiere for 2013 will be “The 
White Queen,” based on the international best-selling novels by Philippa Gregory. The series will air on STARZ and, like “Magic City,” we will distribute 
it globally in key territories in 2013 and beyond. 

Looking to 2014, we expect to start the year off with a flare when we premiere filmmaker Michael Bay’s (Transformers franchise, Armageddon) first 
scripted project produced for television, the pirate adventure, “Black Sails.” The eight-episode first season centers on the epic tales and sea battles 
of Captain Flint and his men and is set more than 20 years before “Treasure Island.” Starz Distribution will also be the distributor of “Black Sails” in all 
global territories providing your company with the opportunity to earn attractive distribution economics.
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Regards,

Chris Albrecht
Chief Executive Officer

Gregory B. Maffei
Chairman of the Board

While this is surely an impressive pipeline, our work in developing an even more robust original programming offering has, thus far, been modest due 
to the size and nature of our theatrical output deals. It was widely publicized that we decided not to renew our agreement with Disney, which currently 
provides us with first-run releases that extend into 2017. The runway afforded by the departing Disney theatrical output will enable us to accelerate and 
expand our original programming development over the next several years, so we are in position to offer additional exclusive original content when 
the Disney product begins to roll-off our networks. In the meantime, we renewed and extended our theatrical agreement with Sony Pictures, ensuring 
that we have access to more great movies from one of Hollywood’s most successful studios. Importantly, Sony Pictures’ films nicely complement our 
audience demographics and enhance our brand with our viewers. 

As a new independent, public company, our Starz executive team and our new board of directors are firmly committed to increasing stockholder 
value. Our board is responsible for providing strategic direction on how our capital is invested, and it is our firm intention to invest in long-term, value 
creating strategies. Prudently increasing the volume of original programming is at the top of management’s list. Over time, we believe this investment 
will pay off handsomely. More and varied original programming content will attract consumers and provide additional value to our distributors. In turn, 
this value creation should be rewarded through improved economics for Starz with both our current and potential new distributors. 

We are also excited by the opportunities presented by the rise of powerful consumer media technologies which are driving a fundamental, long-term 
shift to multi-platform viewing of entertainment content—on TVs, PCs, Tablets, and other mobile devices. While we firmly believe linear television will 
remain healthy for many years, there is no arguing that any business providing quality content to consumers also needs to consider the expanding 
options to deliver that content to create highest value for consumers. 

Addressing the opportunity to super-serve our subscribers, wherever they are and on their most convenient devices, we recently launched the Starz 
suite of Internet-enabled digital PLAY services. STARZ Play, ENCORE Play, and MOVIEPLEX® Play services are available to our subscribers on a 
variety of sought-after platforms including on PCs and Macs, iOS devices like the iPad, and on Android devices. Following on our first PLAY launch 
with Cox Communications, we recently rolled out PLAY services to DIRECTV, AT&T U-verse TV, and Verizon FiOS TV customers. Early indications 
suggest the PLAY suite is going to be very popular with viewers and we expect to have more of our subscriber base PLAY-ready by the end of this 
year. Most importantly, the PLAY services give us further flexibility to help bolster our distributors’ video platforms by providing their customers with 
the exciting benefits of device-based media viewing. 

We have made a tremendous amount of progress over the past year positioning our business for future success. But we really are just getting started. 
Over the next year, we will continue to build a unique library of content, monetize our entertainment properties in profitable ways, and maintain strong 
and deep relationships with our distributors and content suppliers. While we continue to implement our exciting original programming strategy, we 
will remain vigilant to ensure we also maintain a strong financial position. While our first priority is to invest in a disciplined way in the organic growth 
of our business, we will also consider other financial options for increasing stockholder returns.

In closing, we would like to thank our employees, our board of directors, as well as John Malone and our other partners at Liberty Media, all of whom 
have been instrumental in helping position Starz for long-term success as a leader in the premium TV category. 

We would also like to thank you, our stockholders, for your support. We are committed to the growth of your company and delivering real value to you.
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Certain statements in this Annual Report constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including 

statements regarding our business, product and marketing strategies; new service offerings; revenue growth and subscriber trends; the recoverability of our goodwill 

and other long-lived assets; our projected sources and uses of cash; and the anticipated impact of certain contingent liabilities related to legal and tax proceedings and 

other matters arising in the ordinary course of business. In particular, statements in our “Letter to our Stockholders” and under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” contain forward-looking statements. Where, in any 

forward-looking statement, we express an expectation or belief as to future results or events, such expectation or belief is expressed in good faith and believed to have 

a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the expectation or belief will result or be achieved or accomplished. The following include some but not all of the 

factors that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated:

	 •	changes	in	the	nature	of	key	strategic	relationships	with	multichannel	video	programming	distributors	(“MVPDs”)	and	content	providers	and	our	ability	to		 	

	 	 maintain	and	renew	affiliation	agreements	with	MVPDs	and	programming	output	agreements	with	content	providers	on	terms	acceptable	to	us;

	 •	 distributor	demand	for	our	products	and	services,	including	the	impact	of	higher	rates	paid	by	our	distributors	to	other	programmers,	and	our	ability	to		 	

  adapt to changes in demand;

	 •	 consumer	demand	for	our	products	and	services,	including	changes	resulting	from	the	unwillingness	of	certain	distributors	to	allow	us	to	participate	in		 	

  cooperative marketing campaigns, and our ability to adapt to changes in demand;

	 •	 competitor	responses	to	our	products	and	services;

	 •	 the	cost	of	and	our	ability	to	acquire	or	produce	desirable	original	programming;

	 •	 the	cost	of	and	our	ability	to	acquire	desirable	theatrical	movie	content;

	 •	 disruption	in	the	production	of	theatrical	films	or	television	programs	due	to	strikes	by	unions	representing	writers,	directors	or	actors;

	 •	 changes	in	distribution	and	viewing	of	television	programming,	including	the	expanded	deployment	of	personal	video	recorders,	video	on-demand,	and	IP			

  television and their impact on media content consumption;

	 •	 continued	consolidation	of	the	broadband	distribution	and	movie	studio	industries;

	 •	 uncertainties	inherent	in	the	development	and	deployment	of	new	business	lines	and	business	strategies;

	 •	 uncertainties	associated	with	product	and	service	development	and	market	acceptance,	including	the	development	and	provision	of	programming	for	new			

  television and telecommunications technologies;

	 •	 our	future	financial	performance,	including	availability,	terms	and	deployment	of	capital;

	 •	 the	ability	of	our	suppliers	and	vendors	to	deliver	products,	equipment,	software	and	services;

	 •	 the	outcome	of	any	pending	or	threatened	litigation,	including	matters	described	in	the	notes	to	our	consolidated	financial	statements;

	 •	 availability	of	qualified	personnel;

	 •	 the	regulatory	and	competitive	environment	of	the	industry	in	which	we	operate;

	 •	 changes	in,	or	failure	or	inability	to	comply	with,	government	regulations,	including,	without	limitation,	regulations	of	the	Federal	Communications		 	

  Commission, and/or adverse outcomes from regulatory proceedings;

	 •	 changes	in	tax	requirements,	including	tax	rate	changes,	new	tax	laws	and	revised	tax	law	interpretations;

	 •	 general	economic	and	business	conditions	and	industry	trends,	including	the	current	economic	downturn;

	 •	 consumer	spending	levels,	including	the	availability	and	amount	of	individual	consumer	debt;

	 •	 rapid	technological	changes;

	 •	 fluctuation	in	foreign	currency	exchange	rates;	and

	 •	 threatened	terrorist	attacks	or	political	unrest	in	international	markets.

These forward-looking statements and such risks, uncertainties and other factors speak only as of the date of this Annual Report, and we expressly disclaim any obligation or 

undertaking	to	disseminate	any	updates	or	revisions	to	any	forward-looking	statement	contained	herein,	to	reflect	any	change	in	our	expectations	with	regard	thereto,	or	any	

other change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based. When considering such forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind 

any other cautionary statements contained in this Annual Report. Such statements describe circumstances which could cause actual results to differ materially from those 

contained in any forward-looking statement.
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Special Note Regarding Presentation of Financial Information

 During August 2012, the board of directors of Liberty Media Corporation (“Old LMC”) authorized a plan to spin off 
wholly-owned subsidiary Liberty Spinco, Inc. (“Liberty Spinco”) (the “Spin-Off”), which, at the time of the Spin-Off would 
hold all of the businesses, assets and liabilities of Old LMC not associated with the businesses of Starz, LLC (with the 
exception of Starz, LLC’s Englewood, Colorado corporate office building).  On January 11, 2013, the Spin-Off was effected 
in a tax-free manner through the distribution, by means of a pro-rata dividend, of shares of Liberty Spinco to the stockholders 
of Old LMC. As a result, Liberty Spinco became a separate public company on January 11, 2013 and was renamed “Liberty 
Media Corporation” (“New LMC”).  In connection with the Spin-Off, the parent company of Starz, LLC was renamed 
“Starz”.  Unless the context otherwise requires, Old LMC is used when events or circumstances being described occurred 
prior to the Spin-Off, and Starz is used when events or circumstances being described occurred following the Spin-Off and in 
the context of the historical financial information as discussed below.

  The body of generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S.”)  is commonly referred to as 
GAAP.  In accordance with GAAP, New LMC was determined to be the accounting successor to Old LMC for financial 
reporting purposes following the Spin-Off due to the relative significance of New LMC to Starz (which is the legal spinnor) 
and the continued involvement of Old LMC’s senior management with New LMC following the Spin-Off.  Accordingly, the 
historical financial statements of Old LMC prior to the Spin-Off will continue to be the historical financial statements of New 
LMC and Starz’s historical financial information will be deemed to be the financial information of Starz, LLC.  The financial 
statements of Starz reflect Starz, LLC on a historical cost basis.    

 Starz, LLC is the only directly owned subsidiary of Starz which in turn owns either directly or indirectly various 
operating subsidiaries.  Starz is a holding company with no assets, liabilities or operations other than those of Starz, LLC.  
Accordingly, the financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income and cash flows of Starz and Starz, LLC are 
identical.  As Starz’s common stock did not begin publicly trading until January 14, 2013 (following the Spin-Off), Starz’s 
balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 will not reflect common stock and additional paid in capital, but will show 
member’s interest, identical to that of Starz, LLC.  In addition, as the legal spinnor, Starz inherits all of Old LMC’s filing 
requirements and is therefore considered a large accelerated filer.  
 

For convenience, the terms “Starz,” “we,” “us” or “our” are used in this annual report to refer to Starz, and 
collectively to Starz and its majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries, unless the context otherwise requires.  The term 
Starz, LLC refers to our wholly-owned subsidiary Starz, LLC.

Business Overview

Our business operations are conducted by our wholly-owned subsidiaries Starz, LLC, Starz Entertainment, LLC 
("Starz Entertainment"), Film Roman, LLC (“Film Roman”) and certain other immaterial subsidiaries, and our majority-
owned subsidiary Starz Media Group, LLC (“Starz Media”), which is owned 25% by The Weinstein Company LLC (“TWC”). 

We provide premium subscription video programming to U.S. multichannel video programming distributors 
(“MVPDs”), including cable operators, satellite television providers and telecommunications companies.  We also develop, 
produce and acquire entertainment content and distribute this content to consumers in the U.S. and throughout the world.  Our 
operations are managed by and organized around our Starz Networks, Starz Distribution and Starz Animation operating 
segments.  Our integrated operating segments enable us to maintain control, and maximize the profitability of our original 
programming content and its marketing and distribution in the home video, digital (Internet) and television ancillary markets 
both domestically and internationally, and we are not reliant on other parties to distribute content on our behalf.  Our 
expanding original programming line-up also provides downstream revenue opportunities for our Starz Distribution operating 
segment to the extent we retain rights to exploit such programming in these ancillary markets both in the U.S. and around the 
world.

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Not applicable.  Starz’s common stock (ticker symbols STRZA and STRZB) did not begin trading until January 14, 
2013 (after the Spin-Off).
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Selected Financial Data

 The statement of operations, balance sheet and other financial data included in the following selected historical 
consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for each year in the three-year period ended December 31, 
2012 have been derived from the audited annual consolidated financial statements of Starz included elsewhere in this annual 
report. The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the statement of operations and other financial data for 
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 have been derived from the audited annual consolidated financial statements of 
Starz which are not included in this annual report. The balance sheet data included in the following selected historical 
consolidated financial data as of December 31, 2008 has been derived from the unaudited annual consolidated financial 
statements of Starz which are not included in this annual report. The selected historical consolidated financial data presented 
below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report and 
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Statement of Operations Data (in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Revenue:
Programming networks and other services $ 1,419,074 $ 1,372,141 $ 1,380,349 $ 1,354,978 $ 1,253,081
Home video net sales 211,622 241,892 224,988 167,619 160,140

Total revenue 1,630,696 1,614,033 1,605,337 1,522,597 1,413,221
Costs and expenses:

Programming costs (including amortization) 661,157 651,249 647,817 641,477 660,322
Production and acquisition costs (including amortization) 192,340 158,789 177,954 107,122 95,888
Home video cost of sales 63,880 62,440 69,815 63,296 83,420
Operating expenses 53,410 53,703 73,260 79,963 75,122
Advertising and marketing 105,674 132,183 175,417 229,335 259,174
General and administrative 109,403 106,081 125,421 121,792 129,290
Stock compensation, long-term incentive plan and phantom 

stock appreciation rights 20,022 7,078 39,468 35,142 23,127
Depreciation and amortization 19,406 17,907 20,468 23,470 27,448
Impairment of goodwill and other assets — — — — 1,432,101

Total costs and expenses 1,225,292 1,189,430 1,329,620 1,301,597 2,785,892
Operating income (loss) 405,404 424,603 275,717 221,000 (1,372,671)

Other income (expense):
Interest expense, including amounts due to affiliates, net of

amounts capitalized (25,688) (5,012) (20,932) (27,188) (38,836)
Other income (expense), net 3,023 (3,505) (542) (4,719) (6,899)

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
taxes 382,739 416,086 254,243 189,093 (1,418,406)

Income tax benefit (expense) (130,465) (172,189) (98,764) (71,006) 62,077
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 252,274 $ 243,897 $ 155,479 $ 118,087 $ (1,356,329)

Balance Sheet Data (in thousands)

As of December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(unaudited)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 749,774 $ 1,099,887 $ 315,652 $ 258,895 $ 117,997
Program rights(1) $ 678,689 $ 761,850 $ 734,077 $ 786,757 $ 841,794
Investment in films and television programs $ 181,673 $ 183,942 $ 120,701 $ 167,640 $ 141,048
Total assets $ 2,176,050 $ 2,603,175 $ 1,893,002 $ 2,022,595 $ 1,977,829
Total debt(2) $ 539,805 $ 545,044 $ 99,214 $ 582,458 $ 561,649
Member’s interest $ 1,311,951 $ 1,651,484 $ 1,508,681 $ 1,469,898 $ 1,414,943
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Other Financial Data (in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 292,077 $ 347,973 $ 191,139 $ 212,076 $ 95,823
Net cash used in investing activities $ (16,214) $ (7,723) $ (7,099) $ (10,018) $ (7,565)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ (626,101) $ 444,002 $ (128,414) $ (75,070) $ (81,318)
Ratio of total debt to Adjusted OIBDA(3) 1.2x 1.2x 0.3x 2.1x 5.1x
Adjusted OIBDA(4) $ 444,832 $ 449,588 $ 335,653 $ 279,612 $ 110,005

Selected Operating Data (in millions)

As of December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Starz subscribers 21.2 19.6 18.2 16.9 17.7
Encore subscribers 34.8 33.2 32.8 30.6 31.7

___________________
(1) Total of current and long-term program rights.
(2) Total of current and long-term portions of debt and capital lease obligations.
(3) Ratio is calculated based on total debt divided by Adjusted OIBDA.
(4) The following table provides a reconciliation of total Adjusted OIBDA to income (loss) from continuing operations 

before income taxes (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Adjusted OIBDA $ 444,832 $ 449,588 $ 335,653 $ 279,612 $ 110,005
Stock compensation, long-term incentive plan and 

phantom stock appreciation rights (20,022) (7,078) (39,468) (35,142) (23,127)
Depreciation and amortization (19,406) (17,907) (20,468) (23,470) (27,448)
Impairment of goodwill and other assets — — — — (1,432,101)
Interest expense, including amounts due to affiliate, net

of amounts capitalized (25,688) (5,012) (20,932) (27,188) (38,836)
Other income (expense), net 3,023 (3,505) (542) (4,719) (6,899)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income

taxes $ 382,739 $ 416,086 $ 254,243 $ 189,093 $ (1,418,406)

For an explanation of Adjusted OIBDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, see “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Adjusted Operating Income before Depreciation and 
Amortization (Adjusted OIBDA).”

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

 Management’s discussion and analysis, or MD&A, of the results of operations and financial condition is provided as 
a supplement to the audited annual consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere herein to help 
provide an understanding of our financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operations. The information 
included in this MD&A should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements included in this annual report 
as well as the financial data set forth under “Selected Financial Data.” 
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STRATEGY AND CHALLENGES

 Our mission is to be a leading global entertainment brand providing powerful and immersive experiences. To that 
end, our goal is to provide our distributors and their subscribers with high-quality, differentiated premium video services 
available on multiple viewing platforms.

Strategy

 Our strategy is based on the following four strategic objectives:

 Deepen relationships with core network distributors.  We have long-term relationships with the largest MVPDs in 
the U.S.  We have maintained uninterrupted carriage and have been successful in renewing our affiliation agreements with our 
distributors in the past. Our increasingly broad content offerings and services help drive the profitability of these distributors. 
Many of these distributors have included our Starz and Encore networks in some of their best performing programming 
packages.  

 We plan to create valuable new products and services, like our authenticated online offerings Starz Play, Encore Play 
and MoviePlex Play, that will assist our distributors in strengthening their product offerings.  We expect these efforts to 
solidify our relationships with our distributors by assisting us in renewing and extending our affiliation agreements and 
increasing our subscribers.

 Expand our slate of compelling, immersive, and differentiated original programming.  We believe that a 
differentiated network brand and long-term shareholder value rests on having greater scale and output of exclusive original 
programming. We continue to look at how we can best increase the rate of deployment of original programming. Various 
mechanisms exist to prudently and economically increase original programming, including enhancing our in-house production 
capabilities, co-productions, and licensing arrangements.  For example, our recent multi-year agreement with BBC Worldwide 
Limited enables us to share financial exposure for high quality new productions.  Da Vinci’s Demons, the first original series 
greenlit under this agreement, will premiere in April 2013.

In 2012, we aired three original series (Spartacus: Vengeance, Magic City Season 1 and Boss) and plan to air four 
original series in 2013 (Spartacus: War of the Damned, Da Vinci’s Demons, Magic City Season 2 and White Queen) 
representing a relatively small portion of our total programming lineup. Over time, we plan to increase our original 
programming so that our viewers will have an opportunity to see a new Starz original program or a new season of an existing 
Starz original throughout the year. 

 We intend to create unique and fully immersive content ecosystems around our original programming and theatrical 
movie content such as authenticated online offerings, second screen and social media integration.

 Optimize existing and emerging distribution opportunities.  We seek to monetize the digital rights we control for 
our exclusive original programming content and those under our programming licensing agreements with the major studios. 
We look to do this to the fullest extent possible while maintaining wholesale pricing consistent with the premium nature of our 
services. We seek opportunities to license services to our traditional distribution partners, targeting authenticated subscribers, 
as well as online video providers to the extent such online video providers include our services in a premium programming 
tier.

Establish Starz as a leading premium content brand.  We intend to increase our Starz brand awareness, perception 
and loyalty among our distributors to attract new and retain existing subscribers.  To this end, we will continue to focus our 
marketing efforts on improving the recognition of our brand as a premier provider of premium entertainment, including 
compelling original series, as well as first run and classic Hollywood movies. To enhance our brand recognition, we intend to 
continue to focus our marketing investment on original series, and utilize cross-channel advertising with our MVPDs, 
advertising in select print outlets, online advertising (including social media) and outdoor billboards in major cities.
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Challenges

We face certain key challenges in our attempt to achieve our strategic goals, including:

Our ability to renew and extend affiliation agreements with key distributors on favorable terms.  During the fourth 
quarter, we agreed to multi-year extensions with several of our distributors. The financial terms of the extensions with two 
distributors are generally less favorable than the financial terms in the prior affiliation agreements. These less favorable 
financial terms would have resulted in an approximate reduction of 3% of Starz Networks’ revenue for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, on a pro forma basis, had the extended agreements been in effect on January 1, 2012. The agreements 
with these two distributors provide for contractually agreed upon increases in the amounts we receive on an annual basis 
beginning on the first anniversary of the extensions.  

Our ability to continue to acquire or produce affordable programming content, including original programming 
content that appeals to our distributors and our viewers. In December 2012, The Walt Disney Company (“Disney”) informed 
us that it would not extend its licensing agreement with us beyond its expiration on December 31, 2015. We will continue to 
receive films from Disney’s Walt Disney Pictures, Walt Disney Animation Studios, Disney-Pixar, Touchstone Pictures, Marvel 
Entertainment and Hollywood Pictures labels through December 31, 2015 with initial license periods for such films extending 
into 2017. We are evaluating our options with respect to replacement of the Disney content following expiration of the 
licensing agreement, including the production of additional original content.

We also face certain other challenges in our attempt to meet our strategic goals, including:

• Potential loss of subscribers due to economic conditions and competition from other networks and video 
programming services.  

• Potential consolidation of our distributors.

• Increased rates paid by our distributors to carry broadcast networks and sports networks may make it more 
difficult for consumers to afford premium video services.

• Our distributor’s willingness to market our networks and other services.

• Our ability to react to changes in viewer habits related to technologies such as DVRs, video-on-demand, 
Internet-based content delivery, Blu-ray™ players and mobile devices.

ADJUSTED OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION (ADJUSTED OIBDA)

We evaluate performance and make decisions about allocating resources to our operating segments based on 
financial measures such as Adjusted OIBDA. We define Adjusted OIBDA as: revenue less programming costs, production and 
acquisition costs, home video cost of sales, operating expenses, advertising and marketing costs and general and 
administrative expenses. Our chief operating decision maker uses this measure of performance in conjunction with other 
measures to evaluate our operating segments and make decisions about allocating resources among our operating segments. 
We believe that Adjusted OIBDA is an important indicator of the operational strength and performance of our operating 
segments, including each operating segment’s ability to assist in servicing our debt and fund investments in films and 
television programs. In addition, this measure allows management to view operating results and perform analytical 
comparisons and benchmarking between operating segments and identify strategies to improve performance. This measure of 
performance excludes stock compensation, long-term incentive plan and phantom stock appreciation rights, depreciation and 
amortization and impairment of goodwill and other assets that are included in the measurement of operating income pursuant 
to GAAP. Accordingly, Adjusted OIBDA should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for, operating income, 
income from continuing operations before income taxes, net income, net cash provided by operating activities and other 
measures of financial performance prepared in accordance with GAAP. The primary material limitations associated with the 
use of Adjusted OIBDA as compared to GAAP results are (i) it may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by 
other companies in our industry, and (ii) it excludes financial information that some may consider important in evaluating our 
performance. We compensate for these limitations by providing a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to GAAP results to 
enable investors to perform their own analysis of our operating results.
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The tables below set forth, for the periods presented, certain historical financial information for our reportable 
segments (in thousands).  We generally account for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third 
parties, that is, at current market prices.

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Revenue
Starz Networks $ 1,276,815 $ 1,269,924 $ 1,224,136
Starz Distribution 320,671 310,927 367,477
Starz Animation 42,436 45,273 50,007
Inter-segment eliminations (9,226) (12,091) (36,283)

$ 1,630,696 $ 1,614,033 $ 1,605,337
Adjusted OIBDA
Starz Networks $ 447,368 $ 427,689 $ 416,390
Starz Distribution (4,926) 4,567 (66,182)
Starz Animation (932) (850) (2,419)
Inter-segment eliminations 3,322 18,182 (12,136)

$ 444,832 $ 449,588 $ 335,653

The following table provides a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to income from continuing operations before 
income taxes (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Adjusted OIBDA $ 444,832 $ 449,588 $ 335,653
Stock compensation, long-term incentive plan and phantom stock 

appreciation rights (20,022) (7,078) (39,468)
Depreciation and amortization (19,406) (17,907) (20,468)
Interest expense, including amounts due to affiliates, net of amounts

capitalized (25,688) (5,012) (20,932)
Other income (expense), net 3,023 (3,505) (542)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 382,739 $ 416,086 $ 254,243
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

Operating results are as follows (in thousands, except as otherwise indicated):

Year Ended December 31, % Increase (Decrease)
2012 2011 2010 ‘12 vs ‘11 ‘11 vs ‘10

Revenue:
Programming networks and other services $ 1,419,074 $ 1,372,141 $ 1,380,349 3.4 % (0.6)%
Home video net sales 211,622 241,892 224,988 (12.5)% 7.5 %

Total revenue 1,630,696 1,614,033 1,605,337 1.0 % 0.5 %
Costs and expenses:

Programming costs (including 
amortization) 661,157 651,249 647,817 1.5 % 0.5 %

Production and acquisition costs (including 
amortization) 192,340 158,789 177,954 21.1 % (10.8)%

Home video cost of sales 63,880 62,440 69,815 2.3 % (10.6)%
Operating expenses 53,410 53,703 73,260 (0.5)% (26.7)%
Advertising and marketing 105,674 132,183 175,417 (20.1)% (24.6)%
General and administrative 109,403 106,081 125,421 3.1 % (15.4)%
Stock compensation, long-term incentive 

plan and phantom stock appreciation 
rights 20,022 7,078 39,468 182.9 % (82.1)%

Depreciation and amortization 19,406 17,907 20,468 8.4 % (12.5)%
Total costs and expenses 1,225,292 1,189,430 1,329,620 3.0 % (10.5)%
Operating income 405,404 424,603 275,717 (4.5)% 54.0 %

Other income (expense)
Interest expense, including amounts due to

affiliate, net of amounts capitalized (25,688) (5,012) (20,932) 412.5 % (76.1)%
Other income (expense), net 3,023 (3,505) (542) 186.2 % (546.7)%

Income from continuing operations
before income taxes 382,739 416,086 254,243 (8.0)% 63.7 %

Income tax expense (130,465) (172,189) (98,764) (24.2)% 74.3 %
Income from continuing operations 252,274 243,897 155,479 3.4 % 56.9 %

Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes — (7,486) 3,315 100.0 % (325.8)%

Net income $ 252,274 $ 236,411 $ 158,794 6.7 % 48.9 %

As of December 31,
Operating Data (in millions): 2012 2011 2010
Starz subscriptions:

Fixed-rate subscriptions 13.0 9.4 8.6
Consignment subscriptions 8.2 10.2 9.6

Total Starz subscriptions   21.2 19.6 18.2
Encore subscriptions:

Fixed-rate subscriptions 23.2 19.6 19.5
Consignment subscriptions 11.6 13.6 13.3

Total Encore subscriptions   34.8 33.2 32.8
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COMPARISON OF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Revenue

Our revenue increased $16.7 million or 1.0% for the year  ended  December 31, 2012 as compared to the 
corresponding prior year. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased primarily as a result of increases in 
revenue for Starz Distribution and Starz Networks which were partially offset by a decrease in revenue for Starz Animation. 
Starz Networks’ revenue represented 78.3% and 78.7% of our total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.

Revenue from Starz Networks increased $6.9 million or 0.5% for the year ended  December 31, 2012 as compared to 
the corresponding prior year. The Starz Networks’ growth in revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 resulted from a 
$33.6 million increase due to higher effective rates for Starz Networks’ services and a $26.7 million decrease in volume. The 
decrease in volume was due primarily to the non-renewal of the Netflix agreement and a decrease in consignment 
subscriptions.

The Starz and Encore networks are the primary drivers of Starz Networks’ revenue. Starz average subscriptions 
increased 8.2% in 2012 and Encore average subscriptions increased 4.8% in 2012. The impact on revenue due to subscription 
increases is affected by the relative percentage change under consignment agreements and fixed-rate agreements. In this 
regard, as of December 31, 2012, subscriptions under fixed-rate agreements were 36.2 million while subscriptions under 
consignment agreements were 19.8 million. As of December 31, 2011, subscriptions under fixed-rate agreements were 
29.0 million while subscriptions under consignment agreements were 23.8 million. The increase in fixed-rate subscriptions 
includes 3.9 million of subscriptions for certain affiliates which moved from consignment to fixed-rate agreements. 

Revenue from Starz Distribution increased $9.7 million or 3.1% for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared 
to the corresponding prior year.  Such increase is primarily due to increased revenue from the Digital Media and Worldwide 
Distribution businesses which were offset by a decrease in revenue from the Home Video business. The Digital Media 
business experienced an increase in revenue from films released under the distribution agreement with TWC while Worldwide 
Distribution experienced an increase in revenue from distribution of our original programming.  The Home Video business 
experienced a decrease in revenue from the TWC films released during the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the 
corresponding prior year.  This decrease was partially offset by an increase in revenue from the distribution of our original 
series Spartacus and AMC Network’s original series The Walking Dead.  Home video revenue was positively impacted in 
2011 by the release of TWC’s The King’s Speech, which won four Academy Awards®, including Best Picture, Best Actor, Best 
Director and Best Original Screenplay.

Programming

 Programming costs are our largest expense. Programming costs increased $9.9 million or 1.5% for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 as compared to the corresponding prior year.  Programming costs vary due to costs associated with 
original productions, the number of films licensed under our output and library programming agreements and the cost per film 
paid under our output and library agreements. Programming costs for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the 
prior year have increased due to increased exhibitions of our original programming content and higher production costs 
related to our 2012 original series as compared to the 2011 series. Partially offsetting this increase in original programming 
during 2012 is higher utilization of lower cost second window films licensed under our output agreements.  We expect 
programming costs related to original programming will continue to increase in the future as we continue to invest in original 
content.  

Production and Acquisition

Production and acquisition costs primarily include the amortization of our investments in films and television 
programs and participation costs. The license fee associated with original productions is included in programming costs and 
all remaining production and acquisition costs for original productions are amortized to production and acquisition costs 
based on the proportion that current revenue bears to an estimate of our ultimate revenue for each original production. The 
amount of production and acquisition costs that we will incur for original productions is impacted by both the number of 
original productions and the various distribution rights that we acquire or retain for these productions. Participation costs 
represent amounts paid or due to participants under agreements we have whereby Starz Distribution distributes content in 
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which a participant has an ownership interest (e.g., TWC, AMC Networks, producers or writers of our original programming, 
etc.).

Production and acquisition costs increased $33.6 million or 21.1% for the year ended December 31, 2012 as 
compared to the corresponding prior year. The increase in production and acquisition costs is primarily due to higher Starz 
Distribution revenue associated with our original series (which resulted in higher production cost amortization) and higher 
participation costs as a result of a higher gross margin in 2012 on films distributed which was primarily the result of higher 
advertising and marketing costs in 2011 as described below.  In addition, revisions we made in our ultimate revenue estimates 
resulted in impairments of $17.2 million in 2012 as compared to impairments of $12.9 million in 2011.

Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing costs decreased $26.5 million or 20.1% for the year ended  December 31, 2012 as 
compared to the corresponding prior year due primarily to a decrease in advertising and marketing for Starz Distribution and 
Starz Networks. Advertising and marketing for Starz Distribution was higher in 2011 primarily as a result of the home video 
release of The King’s Speech. Advertising and marketing for Starz Networks decreased for the year ended December 31, 2012  
as compared to the corresponding prior year due to a lower number of original series premieres in 2012 than 2011. We expect 
that advertising and marketing costs related to original programming will increase in future periods as we continue to increase 
our investment in original content. 

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses increased $3.3 million or 3.1% for the year ended December 31, 2012 as 
compared to the corresponding prior year due primarily to an increase in severance payments in 2012. General and 
administrative expenses were 6.7% and 6.6% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Stock Compensation, Long Term Incentive Plan and Phantom Stock Appreciation Rights

Stock compensation, long term incentive plan and phantom stock appreciation rights expense increased $12.9 million 
or 182.9% in 2012.  On December 4, 2012, Old LMC effected an acceleration of each unvested in-the-money option to 
acquire shares of Old LMC’s Series A Liberty Capital Common Stock (“LMCA”) by certain of its, and its subsidiaries’ 
officers, which included one of our executive officers.  Following this acceleration, our executive officer exercised, on a net 
settled basis, all of this individual’s outstanding in-the-money vested and unvested options to acquire LMCA shares which 
resulted in a charge of $5.8 million.  An increase in the number of options granted, and at a higher grant-date fair value than 
options previously granted, accounted for the remainder of the increase for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to 
the year ended December 31, 2011.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $20.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to the corresponding 
prior year due to $505.0 million of borrowings that we made under our senior secured credit facilities in November of 2011. 
On September 13, 2012, Starz, LLC and Starz Finance Corp. co-issued $500.0 million of 5% senior notes due September 15, 
2019 (the “Senior Notes”). We used the net proceeds and cash on hand to repay and terminate the $500.0 million term loan 
under the senior secured credit facilities.

Income Taxes

We had income from continuing operations before income taxes of $382.7 million and $416.1 million and income tax 
expense of $130.5 million and $172.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Our effective 
tax rate was 34.1% and 41.4% for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Our effective tax rate differs from the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% as a result of changes in our valuation 
allowance for deferred taxes, state and local taxes and Starz Media’s election, effective April 1, 2012, to convert itself from a 
limited liability company (“LLC”) treated as a corporation to a LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal and state income 
tax purposes. As a result of the conversion, we recognized a capital loss on the deemed liquidation of Starz Media. Based on 
the relevant accounting literature, we had not previously recorded a benefit for the tax basis in the stock of Starz Media. The 
capital loss of $101.3 million (as tax effected) is being carried forward and is recorded as a long term deferred tax asset. We 
do not believe that it is more likely than not that we would be able to generate any capital gains to utilize any of this capital 
loss carryforward as a stand-alone taxpayer and as such, we have recorded a full valuation allowance against this capital loss.
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In addition, under current U.S. federal and state tax law, LLCs treated as partnerships are not subject to income tax at 
the entity level. As such, the election to convert Starz Media to be treated as a partnership for income tax purposes resulted in 
the reversal of deferred tax assets related to Starz Media’s deductible temporary differences of $16.1 million and the reversal 
of a valuation allowance offsetting these deferred tax assets of $16.1 million. Also, a deferred tax asset of $7.1 million was 
recorded for the difference between the book basis and the tax basis of our investment in Starz Media as of April 1, 2012. 

Our effective tax rate for 2011 differs from the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% as a result of changes in our 
valuation allowance for deferred taxes and state and local taxes.

COMPARISON OF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Revenue

Our revenue increased $8.7 million or 0.5% in 2011 as compared to 2010 due primarily to a $45.8 million increase 
from Starz Networks and a decrease in our intersegment eliminations of $24.2 million. Such increases were partially offset by 
decreases in revenue from Starz Distribution of $56.6 million and Starz Animation of $4.7 million. Starz Networks’ revenue 
represented 78.7% and 76.3% of our total revenue in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Revenue from Starz Networks increased $45.8 million or 3.7% in 2011 as compared to 2010 as a result of increases 
in the average number of subscriptions for the Starz Networks’ services as well as rate increases. The 2011 increase in revenue 
from Starz Networks is comprised of $25.0 million due to growth in the average number of subscriptions for Starz Networks’ 
services and $20.8 million due to higher effective rates for Starz Networks’ services.

The Starz and Encore networks are the primary drivers of Starz Networks’ revenue. Starz average subscriptions 
increased 8.8% in 2011 while Encore average subscriptions increased 4.0% in 2011. The impact on revenue due to the 
subscription increases is affected by the relative percentage change under consignment (per subscriber) agreements and fixed-
rate affiliation agreements. In this regard, as of December 31, 2011, subscriptions under fixed-rate agreements were 
29.0 million while subscriptions under consignment agreements were 23.8 million. As of December 31, 2010, subscriptions 
under fixed-rate affiliation agreements were 28.1 million while subscriptions under consignment agreements were 
22.9 million. 

The decrease in revenue from Starz Distribution was primarily due to the decision to shut down our theatrical 
business in 2010 which was partially offset by an increase in revenue from titles distributed for TWC and our original 
programming (primarily our Spartacus franchise).

The intersegment eliminations revenue was lower in 2011 primarily as a result of the number and box office results 
of films released by Overture Films which were exhibited on Starz Networks’ networks.

Programming

Programming costs are our largest expense. Programming costs increased $3.4 million or 0.5% in 2011. 
Programming costs vary due to costs associated with original productions, the number of films licensed under our output and 
library programming agreements and the cost per film paid under our output and library agreements. Programming costs for 
the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to the prior year have increased due to increased exhibitions of our original 
programming content and higher production costs related to our 2011 original series as compared to the 2010 series. A 
decrease in the number of films and corresponding number of exhibitions of such films available under our output agreements 
partially offset the increase in original programming during 2011.  
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Production and Acquisition

Production and acquisition costs primarily include the amortization of our investments in films and television 
programs and participation costs. The license fee associated with original productions is included in programming costs and 
all remaining production and acquisition costs for original productions are amortized to production and acquisition costs 
based on the proportion that current revenue bears to an estimate of our ultimate revenue for each original production. The 
amount of production and acquisition costs that we will incur for original productions is impacted by both the number of 
original productions and the various distribution rights that we acquire or retain for these productions. Participation costs 
represent amounts paid or due to participants under agreements we have whereby Starz Distribution distributes content in 
which a participant has an ownership interest (e.g., TWC, AMC Networks, producers or writers of our original programming, 
etc.). 

Production and acquisition costs decreased $19.2 million or 10.8% in 2011 primarily as a result of a $33.7 million 
decrease in impairment charges. Revisions we made in our ultimate revenue estimates resulted in impairments of 
$12.9 million in 2011 as compared to impairments of $46.6 million in 2010. The decrease in impairment charges was partially 
offset by an increase in participation costs for films that we distribute under our agreement with TWC.

Advertising and Marketing

Advertising and marketing costs decreased $43.2 million or 24.6% in 2011 due primarily to the shut down of our 
theatrical business. We expect that advertising and marketing costs related to our original programming will increase in the 
future as we continue to invest in original content.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses decreased $19.3 million or 15.4% in 2011 primarily as a result of the shut down 
of our theatrical business in 2010. General and administrative expenses were 6.6% and 7.8% of revenue in 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.

Stock Compensation, Long Term Incentive Plan and Phantom Stock Appreciation Rights

Stock compensation, long term incentive plan and phantom stock appreciation rights expense decreased 
$32.4 million or 82.1% in 2011 due primarily to amounts paid in 2010 in excess of amounts accrued to settle all outstanding 
phantom stock appreciation rights held by our founder and former chief executive officer.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $15.9 million or 76.1% in 2011 as compared to 2010. Such decrease was primarily 
attributable to a decrease in interest on debt due to affiliate as a result of the contribution of the corresponding affiliate 
receivables from our former parent company, Old LMC, to us on September 30, 2010 in connection with a corporate 
restructuring. As a result of the contribution, the affiliate debt and related interest expense are eliminated in consolidation 
effective September 30, 2010.

Income Taxes

We had income from continuing operations before income taxes of $416.1 million and $254.2 million and income tax 
expense of $172.2 million and $98.8 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Our effective tax rate was 41.4% and 38.8% in 
2011 and 2010, respectively. Our effective tax rate differs from the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% primarily as a result of 
state and local and foreign taxes. The 2011 tax rate was also impacted by a change in our valuation allowance.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2012, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $749.8 million. Substantially all of our cash and 
cash equivalents are invested in U.S. Treasury securities, other government securities or government guaranteed funds, AAA 
rated money market funds and other highly rated commercial paper.

We generated positive net cash provided by operating activities of $292.1 million, $348.0 million and $191.1 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Our primary uses of cash are payments under our 
programming output and library agreements and production costs for our original programming, home video and other content 
(i.e., investment in films and television programs), which are included as a reduction of net cash provided by operating 
activities. Cash paid under our programming output and library agreements totaled $456.6 million, $554.3 million and 
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$532.6 million for years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Cash paid for original programming, home 
video and other content totaled $284.1 million, $213.7 million and $117.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively. We plan to make additional investments in original programming in the future.  Additionally, we 
may use cash for the potential buyback of common stock under our share buyback program.

Payments made under our long-term incentive plan and the timing of tax payments made to Old LMC negatively 
impacted net cash provided by operating activities in 2012. During 2012, we made cash payments of $161.4 million for 
income taxes and $33.4 million under our long-term incentive plan as compared to cash payments of $44.8 million for income 
taxes and $7.7 million under our long-term incentive plan in 2011. During 2010, we also made a non-recurring payment of 
$149.6 million to settle all remaining phantom stock appreciation rights held by our founder and former chief executive 
officer which negatively impacted our net cash provided by operating activities. 

We are continually projecting our anticipated cash requirements for our operating, investing and financing needs as 
well as net cash provided by operating activities available to meet these needs. Our potential sources of liquidity are available 
cash balances, net cash provided by operating activities and borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility and 
we expect that we will be able to utilize these sources to fund our cash commitments for investing and financing activities, 
which include the remaining $1.2 billion of the $1.8 billion distribution paid to Old LMC in connection with the Spin-Off as 
described below, debt repayments and capital expenditures during 2013. Based upon our current operating plans, we believe 
that our net cash provided by operating activities will be sufficient to fund our cash commitments for investing and financing 
activities such as our long term debt obligations and capital expenditures from 2014 through 2017. As of December 31, 2012, 
on a pro forma basis after the $1.8 billion distribution to Old LMC, we would have had $445.0 million available for 
borrowing under our senior secured revolving credit facility, which is available to fund our operating activities and cash 
commitments for investing and financing activities. 

On November 16, 2011, we closed our $1.5 billion senior secured credit facilities with a group of banks. Such 
facilities are comprised of a $1,000.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility and a $500.0 million senior secured term 
loan A. On November 18, 2011, we borrowed $500.0 million under the senior secured term loan A and $5.0 million under the 
senior secured revolving credit facility. On September 13, 2012, we closed the offering of $500.0 million of 5% Senior Notes 
due September 15, 2019, the net proceeds of which were used together with cash on hand to repay and terminate the senior 
secured term loan A.  On February 8, 2013, Starz, LLC and Starz Finance Corp. completed the issuance of an additional 
$175.0 million 5.0% senior notes (the “New Notes”), which were issued as additional notes under the indenture governing the 
Senior Notes.  The net proceeds from the issuance of the New Notes were used to repay indebtedness under Starz, LLC’s 
senior secured revolving credit facility.  The senior secured revolving credit facility contains certain covenants, including a 
covenant that limits our maximum leverage ratio, as defined in the credit agreement, to not more than 4.75 to 1.00 through 
December 31, 2013 and 4.25 to 1.00 thereafter. In addition, investments in unrestricted subsidiaries, as defined in the credit 
agreement, shall not exceed $150.0 million during the term of the credit agreement (starting on the closing date of 
November 16, 2011). Starz Entertainment and Starz Finance Corp. are the only guarantors and restricted subsidiaries under 
the senior secured revolving credit facility. The senior secured revolving credit facility matures on November 16, 2016. In 
connection with the Spin Off,  Starz, LLC distributed $1.8 billion in cash to Old LMC (paid as follows: $100.0 million on 
July 10, 2012, $250.0 million on August 17, 2012, $50.0 million on September 4, 2012, $200.0 million on November 16, 
2012 and $1.2 billion on January 10, 2013), funded by a combination of cash on hand and $550.0 million of borrowings under 
our senior secured revolving credit facility (under which $995.0 million was available to be drawn as of December 31, 2012). 
See “Special Note Regarding Presentation of Financial Information” for additional information. 

As of  December 31, 2012, Starz Entertainment had an outstanding loan receivable from Starz Media, which is an 
unrestricted subsidiary, totaling $26.1 million.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND AGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

We are required to make future payments under various contracts, including long-term output licensing agreements, 
affiliation agreements, debt agreements, lease agreements, long-term incentive plans and various other agreements, 
Information concerning the amount and timing of required payments related to our contractual obligations at December 31, 
2012 is summarized below (these contractual obligations are grouped in the same manner as they are classified in the 
consolidated statements of cash flows in order to provide a better understanding of the nature of the obligations and to provide 
a basis for comparison to historical information):

Payments due by period (in thousands)

Total
Less than

1 year 2 - 3 years 4 - 5 years
After

5 years
Operating activities:

Programming rights $ 950,181 $ 382,110 $ 174,558 $ 127,768 $ 265,745
Affiliation agreements 46,668 34,842 9,025 2,801 —
Investment in films and television programs 81,225 81,225 — — —
Long-term incentive and deferred compensation

plans 6,871 4,757 2,114 — —
Operating lease obligations 22,932 6,123 10,620 4,489 1,700
Purchase orders and other obligations 227,667 198,867 24,000 4,800 —
Interest related to total debt 184,061 27,192 53,574 52,265 51,030

Financing activities:
Repayments of total debt 539,805 4,134 9,078 15,277 511,316

Investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment 2,400 2,400 — — —

Total $ 2,061,810 $ 741,650 $ 282,969 $ 207,400 $ 829,791

 Obligations for Operating Activities

We have entered into an exclusive long-term licensing agreement for theatrically released films from Disney through 
2015. The agreement provides us with exclusive pay TV rights to exhibit qualifying theatrically released live-action and 
animated feature films under the Disney, Touchstone, Pixar and Marvel labels. Theatrically released films produced by 
DreamWorks are not licensed to us under the agreement. In addition, we are obligated to pay programming fees for all 
qualifying films that are released theatrically in the U.S. by Sony Pictures Entertainment, Inc.'s (“Sony”) Columbia Pictures, 
Screen Gems, Sony Pictures Classics and TriStar labels through 2021, subject to certain limitations. The programming fees to 
be paid by us to Disney and Sony are based on the quantity and domestic theatrical exhibition receipts of qualifying films. We 
have also entered into agreements with a number of other motion picture producers and are obligated to pay fees for the rights 
to exhibit certain films that are released by these producers.

The unpaid balance for film rights related to films that were available at December 31, 2012  is reflected in accrued 
liabilities and in other liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. As of  December 31, 2012, such liabilities aggregated 
$58.6 million and are payable as follows: $57.1 million in 2013 and $1.5 million in 2014. 

Under the agreements with Disney and Sony, we are obligated to pay fees for the rights to exhibit films that have 
been released theatrically, but are not available for exhibition by us until some future date. The estimated amounts payable 
under our programming license agreements, including the Disney and Sony agreements, which have not been accrued as of 
December 31, 2012, are as follows: $325.0 million in 2013; $101.4 million in 2014; $71.7 million in 2015; $63.8 million in 
2016; $64.0 million in 2017 and $265.7 million thereafter.  

Starz, LLC is also obligated to pay fees for films that have not yet been released in theaters. Starz, LLC is unable to 
estimate the amounts to be paid under these agreements for films that have not yet been released in theaters; however, such 
amounts are expected to be significant.
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Obligations for Financing Activities

Effective January 11, 2013, in connection with the Spin-Off, we distributed our Englewood, Colorado corporate 
office building and related building improvements to Old LMC (and Old LMC subsequently transferred such building and 
related improvements to Liberty Property Holdings, Inc. (“LPH”), now a subsidiary of New LMC) and leased back the use of 
such facilities from LPH.  Under the terms of the agreement, we will lease the facilities for a term of 10 years, with an 
additional four successive five-year renewal terms at our option.  We are obligated to pay LPH approximately $3.4 million in 
the initial year of the lease, with annual increases related to the change in the Consumer Price Index.

Guarantee Commitments

Our subsidiary, Starz Media Canada Co. (“Canada Co.”), entered into an agreement with the Ontario government 
whereby Canada Co. is eligible to receive funds under the Canadian Next Generation of Jobs Fund Grant through the 
termination date of March 31, 2014. Starz Entertainment entered into a guarantee for any amounts owed to the Ontario 
government under the grant if Canada Co. does not meet its obligation. The maximum amount of the grant available and the 
guarantee is $23.1 million. The Ontario government can demand payment from Starz Entertainment if Canada Co. does not 
perform any of its obligations. The maximum potential amount payable under the guarantee is $10.7 million at December 31, 
2012 and Starz Entertainment has accrued $8.5 million related to this guarantee as of December 31, 2012. We sold a 
controlling interest in Canada Co. on March 3, 2011. The terms of the guarantee have not changed.

In January 2011, our majority-owned subsidiary Anchor Bay Entertainment, LLC (“Anchor Bay Entertainment”) 
entered into a five-year license agreement with TWC for the distribution, by our Home Video and Digital Media businesses, 
of certain of TWC’s theatrical releases. Anchor Bay Entertainment recovers its advances through the distribution of DVDs and 
earns a fee. Starz Entertainment guarantees Anchor Bay Entertainment’s advance payments to TWC under this agreement up 
to $50.0 million.

Starz Entertainment is the guarantor on two noncancelable operating leases in which a subsidiary of Starz Media and 
Film Roman, respectively, are the tenant. The maximum potential amount payable under these guarantees is $13.0 million at 
December 31, 2012. Starz Entertainment does not currently expect to have to perform under these obligations. The leases 
expire in 2014 and 2016, respectively.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The following represents a discussion of our critical accounting estimates. For information regarding our significant 
accounting policies, see note 2 to our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Program Rights

Programming costs are our most significant individual operating cost. Program rights for films and television 
programs exhibited by Starz Networks are generally amortized on a film-by-film basis over the anticipated number of 
exhibitions. We estimate the number of exhibitions based on the number of exhibitions allowed in the agreement and the 
expected usage of the content. We generally have rights to two or three separate windows under our pay-television output 
agreements. For films with multiple windows, the license fee is allocated between the windows based upon the proportionate 
estimated value of each window. We have allocated a substantial portion of the programming costs to the first window as first-
run content is believed to have greater appeal to subscribers when it is newer and therefore deemed to have greater value to us 
in acquiring and retaining subscribers. Certain other program rights are amortized to expense using the straight-line method 
over the respective lives of the agreements.

Additionally, we allocate programming costs associated with our original productions between the pay television 
window and the ancillary revenue markets (e.g., home video, digital platforms, international television, etc.) based on the 
estimated relative fair values of these markets. Costs allocated to the pay television window are amortized to expense over the 
anticipated number of exhibitions for each original production while costs associated with the ancillary revenue markets are 
amortized to expense based on the proportion that current revenue from the original productions bears to an estimate of the 
remaining unrecognized revenue (ultimate revenue). Estimates of fair value for the pay television and ancillary markets 
involve uncertainty as well as estimates of ultimate revenue.

Changes in management’s estimate of the anticipated exhibitions of films and original programming on our networks 
and the estimate of ultimate revenue could result in the earlier recognition of our programming costs than anticipated. 
Conversely, scheduled exhibitions may not capture the appropriate usage of the program rights in current periods which would 
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lead to the write-off of additional program rights in future periods and have a significant impact on our future results of 
operations and our financial position.

Impairment of Goodwill

We test goodwill annually for impairment at December 31 or more frequently if indicators of potential impairment 
exist.  Our goodwill balance resides entirely at our Starz Networks’ operating segment which is also a reporting unit.  At 
December 31, 2012, we first utilized a qualitative assessment for determining whether the first step of the goodwill 
impairment analysis was necessary. In evaluating goodwill on a qualitative basis, we considered whether there were any 
negative macroeconomic conditions, negative changes in our industry specific conditions, market changes, increased 
competition, increased costs in doing business, management challenges, events affecting a reporting unit such as a change in 
the composition or carrying amount of its net assets, the legal environment and how these factors might impact our 
performance in future periods. This qualitative assessment involves a significant amount of judgment on the part of 
management.

 If step one is necessary, the fair value of Starz Networks’ goodwill is compared to its carrying value. Fair value is 
estimated by considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting estimated future cash flows from such assets using an 
appropriate discount rate. If the carrying amount of Starz Networks exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill 
impairment test is performed to measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss, if any. The second step of the goodwill 
impairment test would compare the implied fair value of  Starz Networks’ goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. 
If the carrying amount of Starz Networks’ goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is 
recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the 
amount of goodwill that would be recognized in a business combination. 

 At December 31, 2012, our qualitative assessment indicated that step one of the goodwill impairment analysis was 
necessary due to the Spin-Off and the known future change in our net assets due to the remaining $1.2 billion of the $1.8 
billion cash distribution we made to Old LMC on January 10, 2013.  We utilized a valuation analysis which included a 
guideline public companies analysis and a discounted cash flow analysis, prepared by a third party, to perform step one, which 
indicated Starz Networks did not have an impairment at December 31, 2012.  At December 31, 2011, our qualitative 
assessment indicated that step one of the goodwill impairment analysis was not necessary.  For 2010, we performed step one 
of the goodwill impairment analysis utilizing a discounted cash flow analysis prepared by management which indicated Starz 
Networks did not have an impairment at December 31, 2010.  The cash flow projections used in our analysis represent 
management’s best estimate of the future cash flows for Starz Networks as of December 31, 2010. 

The fair value of Starz Networks substantially exceeds its carrying value.  Goodwill impairment tests require a high 
degree of judgment with respect to estimates of future cash flows and discount rates as well as other assumptions. 
Accordingly, any value ultimately derived for Starz Networks may differ from our estimate of fair value.

Carrying Value of Investments in Films and Television Programs

Investment in films and television programs includes the cost of completed films, television programs and original 
productions which we have produced or for which we have acquired distribution rights, as well as the cost of films, television 
programs or original productions in production, pre-production and development. Investment in films and television programs 
is stated at unamortized cost unless reduced to estimated fair value, as discussed below, on an individual film basis. 
Investment in films and television programs is amortized to production and acquisition costs using the individual-film-
forecast method, whereby the costs are charged to expense and royalty, participation and residual costs are accrued based on 
the proportion that current revenue from the films, television programs and original productions bears to an estimate of the 
remaining unrecognized ultimate revenue. Estimates of ultimate revenue involve uncertainty and it is therefore possible that 
reductions in the carrying value of investment in films and television programs may be required as a consequence of changes 
in management’s future revenue estimates. We periodically review revenue estimates and revise our assumptions as necessary, 
which impacts the timing of amortization expense. Significant revisions to our revenue estimates could also be an indicator 
that a film is impaired.

Investment in films and television programs is reviewed for impairment on a title-by-title basis when an event or 
change in circumstances indicates that a film, television program or original production may be impaired. The estimated fair 
value for each title is determined using the discounted estimated future cash flow of each title. If the estimated fair value of a 
film, television program or original production is less than its unamortized cost, the excess of unamortized cost over the 
estimated fair value is charged to expense. Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate the fair value of 
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investment in films and television programs. Changes in these estimates could significantly impact the impairment analysis in 
the future.

Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets

We are required to estimate the amount of tax payable for the current year and the deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities for the future tax consequences of events that have been reflected in our financial statements or tax returns. In 
assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or 
all of our deferred tax assets will not be realized. Our ability to realize deferred tax assets depends upon the generation of 
sufficient future taxable income and tax planning strategies. We may be required to record additional valuation allowances 
against our deferred tax assets in the future if our assumptions and estimates change which would result in additional income 
tax expense. Management evaluates the realizability of our deferred tax assets quarterly.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk in the normal course of business due to our ongoing financial and operating activities. 
Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in stock prices and interest rates. The risk of loss can be 
assessed from the perspective of adverse changes in fair values, cash flows and future earnings.

We are exposed to changes in interest rates as a result of borrowings used to maintain our liquidity and fund our 
operations. The nature and amount of our long-term and short-term debt are expected to vary as a result of future 
requirements, market conditions and other factors. We manage our exposure to interest rates by maintaining what we believe 
is an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debt and by entering into interest rate swap and collar arrangements when we 
deem appropriate.

As of December 31, 2012, our debt is comprised of the following amounts (in thousands):

Variable rate debt Fixed rate debt
Principal
amount

Weighted avg.
interest rate

Principal
amount

Weighted avg.
interest rate

$5,000 1.96% $534,805 5.09%

As noted above, our outstanding debt at December 31, 2012 was primarily fixed rate debt. We have borrowing 
capacity at December 31, 2012 of $995.0 million under our senior secured revolving credit facility at variable rates. On 
January 10, 2013, we utilized $550.0 million of borrowings under our senior secured revolving credit facility and cash on 
hand to pay the remaining $1.2 billion of the $1.8 billion cash distribution to Old LMC (such distributed cash was 
subsequently contributed to New LMC) which resulted in a more balanced mix of fixed and variable rate debt.

At December 31, 2012, the fair value of the Senior Notes was $517.8 million.  We believe the fair value of our 
remaining debt approximates its carrying value as of December 31, 2012 due to its variable rate nature and our stable credit 
spread.

We are exposed to foreign exchange rate risk on certain of our original productions that are produced in foreign 
countries. We mitigate this foreign exchange rate risk by entering into forward contracts and other types of derivative 
instruments as deemed appropriate. As of December 31, 2012, the fair market value of our outstanding derivative instruments 
related to foreign currencies was insignificant. We are also exposed to foreign exchange rate risk on our foreign operations; 
however, this risk is not deemed significant to our overall business.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

 In accordance with GAAP, New LMC was determined to be the accounting successor to Old LMC for financial 
reporting purposes following the Spin-Off due to the relative significance of New LMC to Starz (which is the legal spinnor) 
and the continued involvement of Old LMC’s senior management with New LMC following the Spin-Off.  Accordingly, the 
historical financial statements of Old LMC prior to the Spin-Off will continue to be the historical financial statements of New 
LMC and Starz’s historical financial information will be deemed to be the financial information of Starz, LLC.  Starz, LLC is 
the only directly owned subsidiary of Starz which in turn owns either directly or indirectly various operating subsidiaries.  
Starz is a holding company with no assets, liabilities or operations other than those of Starz, LLC.  Accordingly, the financial 
position, results of operations, comprehensive income and cash flows of Starz and Starz, LLC are identical.  
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 The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Starz’s consolidated financial statements and 
notes thereto appear in a separate section of this report (beginning on page F-19).  

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

In accordance with Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and 
with the participation of management, including our chief executive officer and our principal financial and accounting officer 
(the “Executives”), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this 
report. Based on that evaluation, the Executives concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of 
December 31, 2012 to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted 
under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities 
and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Starz’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over Starz’s financial 
reporting. Starz’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Starz’s internal control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions of Starz; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; (3) 
provide reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of Starz are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of Starz; and (4) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of Starz’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements and related disclosures. 

Because of inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Starz assessed the design and effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. In 
making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. 

Based upon our assessment using the criteria contained in COSO, management has concluded that, as of December 
31, 2012, Starz’s internal control over financial reporting is effectively designed and operating effectively. 

Starz’s independent registered public accounting firm audited the consolidated financial statements and related 
disclosures in the Annual Report on Form 10-K and has issued an audit report on the effectiveness of Starz’s internal control 
over financial reporting. This report appears on page F-19.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the year ended 
December 31, 2012 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial 
reporting.

Other Information

None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Starz:

We have audited Starz’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control - Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO). Starz’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting 
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Starz’s 
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal 
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of 
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, Starz maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the consolidated balance sheets of Starz and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows, and member’s interest and noncontrolling interests for each of 
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, and our report dated February 27, 2013 expressed an unqualified 
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 27, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Starz:
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Starz and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows, and member’s interest 
and noncontrolling interests for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012. These consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements based on our audits.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements  An audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Starz and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of 
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control 
- Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our 
report dated February 27, 2013  expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting.  

/s/ KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 27, 2013
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Starz and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2012 and 2011 

(in thousands)

2012 2011
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12) $ 749,774 $ 1,099,887
Restricted cash — 4,896
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of $35,045 and $38,355 (Note 12) 241,415 241,026
Program rights 340,005 388,298
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) 990 10,114
Other current assets 44,727 31,336

Total current assets 1,376,911 1,775,557
Program rights 338,684 373,552
Investment in films and television programs, net (Note 4) 181,673 183,942
Property and equipment, net (Note 5) 96,280 98,531
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) 12,222 —
Goodwill (Note 12) 131,760 131,760
Other assets, net 38,520 39,833

Total assets $ 2,176,050 $ 2,603,175

Liabilities and Member’s Interest
and Noncontrolling Interests

Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt (Note 6) $ 4,134 $ 4,129
Trade accounts payable 6,162 8,690
Accrued liabilities (Notes 7, 8, 9 and 11) 256,062 304,150
Due to affiliates (Note 8) 39,519 53,836
Deferred revenue 24,574 26,734

Total current liabilities 330,451 397,539
Debt (Note 6) 535,671 540,915
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) — 10,308
Other liabilities (Note 11) 7,784 11,312

Total liabilities 873,906 960,074

Member’s interest 1,311,951 1,651,484
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries (9,807) (8,383)

Total member’s interest and noncontrolling interests 1,302,144 1,643,101
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)

Total liabilities and member’s interest and noncontrolling interests $ 2,176,050 $ 2,603,175

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starz and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

(in thousands)

2012 2011 2010

Revenue:
Programming networks and other services $ 1,419,074 $ 1,372,141 $ 1,380,349
Home video net sales 211,622 241,892 224,988

Total revenue 1,630,696 1,614,033 1,605,337

Costs and expenses:
Programming costs (including amortization) (Note 11) 661,157 651,249 647,817
Production and acquisition costs (including amortization) 192,340 158,789 177,954
Home video cost of sales 63,880 62,440 69,815
Operating expenses 53,410 53,703 73,260
Advertising and marketing (Note 12) 105,674 132,183 175,417
General and administrative (Notes 8 and 11) 109,403 106,081 125,421
Stock compensation, long term incentive

plan and phantom stock appreciation rights (Note 9) 20,022 7,078 39,468
Depreciation and amortization 19,406 17,907 20,468

Total costs and expenses 1,225,292 1,189,430 1,329,620

Operating income 405,404 424,603 275,717

Other income (expense):
Interest expense, including amounts due to affiliate of none,

none, and  $16,054, net of amounts capitalized (Notes 6 and 8) (25,688) (5,012) (20,932)
Other income (expense), net 3,023 (3,505) (542)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 382,739 416,086 254,243

Income tax expense (Note 10) (130,465) (172,189) (98,764)

Income from continuing operations 252,274 243,897 155,479

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (including loss on sale of
$12,114 in 2011), net of income taxes (Note 3) — (7,486) 3,315

Net  income 252,274 236,411 158,794

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 2,210 3,273 —

Net income attributable to member $ 254,484 $ 239,684 $ 158,794

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starz and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

(in thousands)

2012 2011 2010

Net income $ 252,274 $ 236,411 $ 158,794

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:
Foreign currency translation adjustments from continuing

operations (73) (529) 1,167
Foreign currency translation adjustments from discontinued

operations — (5,946) (1,172)

Other comprehensive loss (73) (6,475) (5)

Comprehensive income 252,201 229,936 158,789

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 2,167 3,447 —

Comprehensive income attributable to member $ 254,368 $ 233,383 $ 158,789

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starz and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 

(in thousands)

2012 2011 2010
Operating activities:

Net income $ 252,274 $ 236,411 $ 158,794
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Loss (income) from discontinued operations — 7,486 (3,315)
Depreciation and amortization 19,406 17,907 20,468
Amortization of program rights 617,789 611,041 611,615
Program rights payments (456,558) (554,341) (532,566)
Amortization of investment in films and television programs 141,553 126,102 116,928
Investment in films and television programs (284,063) (213,655) (117,035)
Stock compensation, long term incentive plan and phantom 

stock appreciation rights 20,022 7,078 39,468
Payments of long term incentive plan and phantom stock 

appreciation rights (33,410) (7,696) (196,232)
Noncash interest on debt due to affiliate — — 16,313
Deferred income taxes (17,410) 37,023 52,954
Other non-cash items 4,533 11,014 2,808
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Current and other assets 1,759 (29,101) 9,510
Due to affiliates (5,637) 89,271 (1,554)
Payables and other liabilities 31,819 9,433 12,983

Net cash provided by operating activities 292,077 347,973 191,139
Investing activities – purchases of property and equipment (16,214) (7,723) (7,099)
Financing activities:

Borrowings of debt 500,000 505,000 129,343
Payments of debt (504,029) (59,170) (202,035)
Debt issuance costs (8,514) (10,191) —
Distributions to parent (600,000) — (75,221)
Distributions to parent related to stock compensation (4,689) — —
Minimum withholding of taxes related to stock compensation (13,273) — —
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation 4,401 — —
Contribution from parent — — 15,000
Contribution from noncontrolling owner of subsidiary — 3,000 500
Settlement of derivative instruments 3 (2,863) (6,301)
Restricted cash — 8,226 10,300

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (626,101) 444,002 (128,414)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 125 (17) 59
Net cash provided by discontinued operations — — 1,072

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (350,113) 784,235 56,757
Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year 1,099,887 315,652 258,895
End of year $ 749,774 $ 1,099,887 $ 315,652

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1 -  Basis of Presentation and Description of Business

 Starz, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Starz, LLC, provides premium subscription video programming to 
United States (“U.S.”) multichannel video programming distributors (“MVPDs”), including cable operators, satellite 
television providers and telecommunications companies.  Starz also develops, produces and acquires entertainment content 
and distributes this content to consumers in the U.S. and throughout the world. 

 During August 2012, the board of directors of Liberty Media Corporation (“Old LMC”) authorized a plan to spin off 
wholly-owned subsidiary Liberty Spinco, Inc. (“Liberty Spinco”) (the “Spin-Off”), which, at the time of the Spin-Off, would 
hold all of the businesses, assets and liabilities of Old LMC not associated with the businesses of Starz, LLC (with the 
exception of Starz, LLC’s Englewood, Colorado corporate office building).  On January 11, 2013, the Spin-Off was effected 
in a tax-free manner through the distribution, by means of a pro-rata dividend, of shares of Liberty Spinco to the stockholders 
of Old LMC. As a result, Liberty Spinco became a separate public company on January 11, 2013 and was renamed “Liberty 
Media Corporation” (“New LMC”). In connection with the Spin-Off, the parent company of Starz, LLC was renamed 
“Starz.”  Unless the context otherwise requires, Old LMC is used to refer to Starz, LLC’s parent company when events or 
circumstances being described occurred prior to the Spin-Off and Starz is used to refer to Starz, LLC’s parent company when 
events or circumstances being described occurred following the Spin-Off. 

  In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), New LMC was determined to be the 
accounting successor to Old LMC for financial reporting purposes following the Spin-Off due to the relative significance of 
New LMC to Starz (which is the legal spinnor) and the continued involvement of Old LMC’s senior management with New 
LMC following the Spin-Off.  Accordingly, the historical financial statements of Old LMC prior to the Spin-Off will continue 
to be the historical financial statements of New LMC and Starz’s historical financial information will be deemed to be the 
financial information of Starz, LLC.  The financial statements of Starz reflect Starz, LLC on a historical cost basis.  Starz, 
LLC is the only directly owned subsidiary of Starz which in turn owns either directly or indirectly various operating 
subsidiaries.  Starz is a holding company with no assets, liabilities or operations other than those of Starz, LLC.  Accordingly, 
the financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income and cash flows of Starz and Starz, LLC are identical. 

 In connection with the Spin-Off, Starz, LLC distributed $1.8 billion in cash to Old LMC (paid as follows: $100.0 
million on July 9, 2012, $250.0 million on August 17, 2012, $50.0 million on September 4, 2012, $200.0 million on 
November 16, 2012 and $1.2 billion on January 10, 2013) funded by a combination of cash on hand and $550.0 million of 
borrowings under Starz, LLC’s senior secured revolving credit facility.  Such distributed cash was contributed to New LMC 
prior to the Spin-Off. Additionally, in connection with the Spin-Off, Starz, LLC distributed its Englewood, Colorado 
corporate office building and related building improvements to Old LMC (and Old LMC transferred such building and 
related improvements to a subsidiary of New LMC) and then leased back the use of such facilities from this New LMC 
subsidiary. Following the Spin-Off, New LMC and Starz operate independently, and neither have any stock ownership, 
beneficial or otherwise, in the other.  See Note 15 – Subsequent Events for additional information regarding agreements 
entered into in connection with the Spin-Off.

 On September 13, 2012, Starz, LLC and Starz Finance Corp. co-issued $500.0 million of 5% Senior Notes due 
September 15, 2019 (the “Senior Notes”).  Starz Finance Corp. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Starz, LLC and was formed 
for the sole purpose of co-issuing the Senior Notes.  Starz Finance Corp. does not have and will not have any operations, 
assets or subsidiaries of its own.  The Senior Notes pay interest semi-annually on September 15 and March 15 of each year.  
The Senior Notes are guaranteed by Starz Entertainment, LLC (“Starz Entertainment”).  Starz, LLC used the net proceeds as 
well as cash on hand to repay and terminate the $500.0 million term loan under its senior secured credit facilities.  See Note 
15 – Subsequent Events for additional information regarding the Senior Notes.

 On January 28, 2011, Starz, LLC sold a 25% interest in Starz Media Group, LLC (“Starz Media”), a previously 
wholly-owned subsidiary, to The Weinstein Company LLC (“TWC”) for cash consideration of $3.0 million. 

 In July 2010, Starz elected to shut down its majority-owned subsidiary Overture Films, LLC (“Overture Films”). 
Prior to its shut down, Overture Films produced, acquired and distributed motion pictures in theaters in the U.S.  Overture 
Films used third party distributors to distribute its films outside the U.S. to the extent it held rights to such films in 
international territories.  Overture Films’ final three films were released theatrically during the fourth quarter of 2010.  The 
Overture Films’ library of films was retained by Starz and will continue to be exploited.  
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 Following the Spin-Off, Starz, LLC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Starz.  Starz’s business operations are 
conducted by its wholly-owned subsidiaries Starz Entertainment, Film Roman, LLC (“Film Roman”) and certain other 
immaterial subsidiaries, and our majority-owned subsidiary Starz Media.  Starz is managed by and organized around the 
following operating segments:  

Starz Networks

 Starz Networks’ (previously referred to as Starz Channels) flagship premium networks are Starz and Encore.  Starz, 
a first-run movie service, exhibits contemporary hit movies, original series, and documentaries.  Encore airs first-run movies 
and classic contemporary movies.  Starz Network’s third network, MoviePlex, offers a variety of art house, independent films 
and classic movie library content.  Starz and Encore, along with MoviePlex, air across 17 linear networks complemented by 
on-demand and Internet services. Starz Networks’ premium networks are offered by MVPDs to their subscribers either on a 
fixed monthly price as part of a programming tier or package or on an a-la-carte basis.

Starz Distribution

 Starz Distribution includes Starz’s Home Video, Digital Media and Worldwide Distribution businesses.

Home Video

 Starz, through its majority-owned subsidiary Anchor Bay Entertainment, LLC (“Anchor Bay Entertainment”), sells 
or rents DVDs (standard definition and Blu-ray™) under the Anchor Bay and Manga brands, in the U.S., Canada, the United 
Kingdom, Australia and other international territories to the extent it has rights to such content in international territories.  
Anchor Bay Entertainment develops and produces certain of its content and also acquires and licenses various titles from 
third parties.  Certain of the titles produced or acquired by Anchor Bay Entertainment air on Starz Networks’ Starz and 
Encore networks.  Anchor Bay Entertainment also distributes other titles acquired or produced by Starz (including Overture 
Films’ titles and Starz Networks’ original programming content) and TWC’s titles.  These titles are sold to and distributed by 
regional and national retailers and other distributors, including Wal-Mart, Target, Best Buy, Ingram Entertainment, Amazon 
and Netflix.  

Digital Media

 Digital Media distributes digital and on-demand content for Starz’s owned content and content for which it has 
licensed digital ancillary rights (including Overture Films’ titles) in the U.S. and throughout the world to the extent it has 
rights to such content in international territories.  Digital Media receives fees for such services from a wide array of partners 
and distributors.  These range from traditional MVPDs, Internet/mobile distributors, game developers/publishers and 
consumer electronics companies.  Digital Media also distributes Starz Networks’ original programming content and TWC’s 
titles. 

Worldwide Distribution

 Worldwide Distribution (previously referred to as Television) distributes movies, television series, documentaries, 
children’s programming and other video content. Worldwide Distribution exploits Starz’s owned content and content for 
which it has licensed ancillary rights (including Overture Films’ titles) on free or pay television in the U.S. and throughout 
the world on free or pay television and other media to the extent it has rights to such content in international territories.  It 
also distributes Starz Networks’ original programming content.

Starz Animation 

Starz, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Film Roman, develops and produces two-dimensional animated content 
on a for-hire basis for distribution theatrically and on television for various third party entertainment companies.  See also 
Note 3 – Discontinued Operations.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

 The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Starz and its majority-owned and 
controlled subsidiaries.  All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.  Starz 
considers amortization of program rights, the fair value of goodwill and any related impairment, the development of ultimate 
revenue estimates (as defined below under “Investment in Films and Television Programs”) associated with released films, 
the assessment of investment in films and television programs for impairment, valuation allowances associated with deferred 
income taxes and allowances for sales returns to be its most significant estimates.  Actual results may differ from those 
estimates.

Prior Period Reclassifications

 Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified for comparability with the 2012 presentation.  In addition, Starz 
reclassified $53.6 million of program rights from current to long-term in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of 
December 31, 2011 to correctly reflect the estimated usage of program rights that extended beyond a year from that date.  The 
revisions were not material to Starz’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less 
when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents are invested at high credit quality financial institutions.  Deposits generally 
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit.

Restricted Cash 

 Restricted cash includes amounts owed under the distribution agreement entered into with TWC (see Note 8).  

Allowance for Trade Receivables

 The allowance for trade receivables represents estimated losses which may result from the inability of customers to 
make required payments on trade accounts receivable and for sales returns.  Allowances for sales returns are based on past 
experience and current trends that are expected to continue.  

Program Rights
 
 The cost of program rights for films and television programs exhibited by Starz Networks are generally amortized 
on a film-by-film basis over the anticipated number of exhibitions. Starz Networks estimates the number of exhibitions based 
on the number of exhibitions allowed in the agreement and the expected usage of the content.  Certain other program rights 
are amortized to expense using the straight-line method over the respective lives of the agreements.  Starz Networks generally 
has rights to two or three separate windows under its output agreements.  For films with multiple windows, the license fee is 
allocated between the windows based upon the proportionate estimated fair value of each window with the majority of the 
cost allocated to the first window.  Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate the fair value of each 
window.

Investment in Films and Television Programs

 Investment in films and television programs generally includes the cost of completed films, television programs and 
original productions which have been produced by Starz or for which Starz has acquired distribution rights, as well as the 
cost of films, television programs or original productions in production, pre-production and development. Capitalized costs 
include production costs, including labor, goods and services, interest and allocable overhead, acquisition of distribution 
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rights (including cash advances paid to TWC for theatrical releases under the  distribution agreement entered into with TWC 
– see Note 8), acquisition of story rights and the development of stories less the license fee for original productions, which 
have aired on the Starz linear channels, on-demand or on the Internet. 

 Starz allocates the cost of its original productions between the pay television window and the ancillary revenue 
markets (e.g. home video, digital platforms, international television, etc.) based on the estimated relative fair values of these 
markets.  The amount associated with original productions is reclassified to program rights when the program is aired. 
Investment in films and television programs is amortized using the individual-film-forecast method, whereby the costs are 
charged to expense and royalty, participation and residual costs are accrued based on the proportion that current revenue from 
the films, television programs and original productions bears to an estimate of the remaining unrecognized ultimate revenue. 
Ultimate revenue estimates do not exceed ten years following the date of initial release or from the date of delivery of the 
first episode for episodic television series. Estimates of ultimate revenue involve uncertainty and it is therefore possible that 
reductions in the carrying value of investment in films and television programs may be required as a consequence of changes 
in management’s future revenue estimates.

 Investment in films and television programs in development or pre-production is periodically reviewed to determine 
whether they will ultimately be used in the production of a film or television program.  Costs of films, television programs 
and original productions in development or pre-production are charged to expense when a project is abandoned, or generally 
if the film, television program or original production has not been set for production within three years from the time of the 
first capitalized transaction.  

 Investment in films and television programs is reviewed for impairment on a title-by-title basis when an event or 
change in circumstances indicates that a film, television program or original production may be impaired.  The estimated fair 
value for each title is determined using the discounted estimated future cash flow of each title.  If the estimated fair value of a 
film, television program or original production is less than its unamortized cost, the excess of unamortized cost over the 
estimated fair value is charged to expense.  Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate the fair value of 
investment in films and television programs.  

Property and Equipment

 Property and equipment is stated at cost.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 15 years for support and distribution equipment, 3 to 7 years for furniture, 
fixtures and other assets and 40 years for the corporate office building.  See Note 15 – Subsequent Events for additional 
information regarding the distribution, and related lease-back, of the corporate office building to a subsidiary of New LMC.

 Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment when an event or change in circumstances indicates that the 
asset may be impaired.  If the carrying value of the asset is determined to not be recoverable and is greater than its fair value, 
then an impairment charge is recognized.  The charge consists of the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds 
its fair value.  Fair value is estimated by considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting estimated future cash 
flows from such asset using an appropriate discount rate.  Considerable management judgment is necessary to determine 
recoverability and to estimate the fair value of property and equipment.  

Goodwill

 Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paid for an acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value of the net 
identified assets acquired.  Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, at December 31, or more frequently if indicators of 
potential impairment exist.  Starz utilizes a qualitative assessment for determining whether step one of the goodwill 
impairment analysis is necessary.  In evaluating goodwill on a qualitative basis, Starz considers whether there were any 
negative macroeconomic conditions, industry specific conditions, market changes, increased competition, increased costs in 
doing business, management challenges, the legal environment and how these factors might impact the company specific 
performance in future periods.  

 If step one is necessary, the fair value of each reporting unit in which goodwill resides is compared to its carrying 
value.  Fair value is estimated by considering sale prices for similar assets or by discounting estimated future cash flows from 
such asset using an appropriate discount rate.  For reporting units whose carrying value exceeds the fair value, a second test is 
required to measure the impairment loss.  In the second test, the fair value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the assets 
and liabilities of the reporting unit with any residual value being allocated to goodwill.  The difference between such 
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allocated amount and the carrying value of the goodwill is recorded as an impairment charge.  Considerable management 
judgment is necessary to estimate the fair value of each reporting unit.  

Revenue Recognition

 Programming revenue is recognized in the period during which programming is provided, pursuant to affiliation 
agreements. If an affiliation agreement has expired, revenue is recognized based on the terms of the expired agreement or the 
actual payment from the distributor, whichever is less.  Payments to distributors for marketing support costs for which Starz, 
LLC does not receive a direct benefit are recorded as a reduction of the corresponding revenue.  Certain sales incentives, 
including discounts and rebates, provided to distributors are accounted for as a reduction of revenue and are not significant.  

 Revenue generated from the sale of DVDs is recognized, net of an allowance for estimated sales returns, on the later 
of the estimated receipt of the product by the customer or after any restrictions on sale lapse.  At the time of the initial sale, 
Starz also records a provision, based on historical trends and practices, to reduce revenue for discounts and rebates provided 
to customers related to the sale of DVDs. 

 Revenue from digital and television licensing is recognized when the film or program is complete in accordance 
with the terms of the arrangement, is available for exploitation and when certain other conditions are met.  In the event that a 
licensee pays Starz a nonrefundable minimum guarantee at or prior to the beginning of a license term, Starz records this 
amount as deferred revenue until all of the criteria for recognition are met.

 Starz recognizes revenue and related production costs related to animation services provided to customers under 
contract generally based on the percentage that costs incurred-to-date bear to estimated total costs to complete based upon the 
most recent information.  Revenue recognized is proportional to the work performed-to-date under the contracts.

 Revenue from the theatrical release of feature films is recognized at the time of exhibition based on Starz’s 
participation in box office receipts. 

Advertising and Marketing

 Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred.  Certain of Starz’s affiliation agreements require Starz to 
provide marketing support to the distributor based upon certain criteria, which are dependent on future events.  Marketing 
support is mutually beneficial and generally cooperative advertising and marketing between Starz and its distributors.  
Marketing support is recorded as an expense and not a reduction of revenue when Starz has received a direct benefit and the 
fair value of such benefit is determinable.  

Stock-Based and Other Long-term Compensation

 Starz measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments (such as stock 
options and restricted stock) based on the grant-date fair value of the award, and recognizes that cost over the period during 
which the employee is required to provide service (usually the vesting period of the award). Starz measures the cost of 
employee services received in exchange for an award of liability instruments based on the current fair value of the award and 
re-measures the fair value of the award at each reporting date.

 Certain current and former employees of Starz held awards granted under the Overture Films, LLC 2006 Long-term 
Incentive Plan (the “Overture LTIP”).  Because Overture is a privately held enterprise, Starz utilized a probability-weighted 
expected return method to determine the fair value of the awards and corresponding compensation expense under the 
Overture LTIP.  The estimated value per unit was estimated based upon an analysis of probability-weighted net present values 
of future returns, considering each of the various future outcomes.  
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Income Taxes

 Starz is a holding company with no assets, liabilities or operations other than those of Starz, LLC.  Starz, LLC is a 
single-member limited liability company (“LLC”), which is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax 
purposes and is included in Old LMC’s consolidated federal and state income tax returns prior to the Spin-Off.  Subsequent to 
the Spin-Off, Starz will file its own U.S. federal and state income tax returns.   

As a result of the sale of 25% of Starz Media to TWC, Starz Media is no longer consolidated for federal income tax 
purposes and is no longer consolidated in certain states for state income tax purposes with Old LMC/Starz and is now a 
separate taxpayer for federal purposes and in certain states.  Effective April 1, 2012, Starz Media filed an election to convert 
itself from a LLC treated as a corporation to a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes.   

 The income tax provision included in these consolidated financial statements has been prepared as if Starz was a 
stand-alone federal and state taxpayer.  Accordingly, Starz has applied the asset and liability method to account for income 
taxes.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between 
the financial statement carrying value amounts and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and the expected benefits of 
utilizing net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.  The deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated using enacted 
tax rates in effect for each taxing jurisdiction in which Starz operates for the year in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled.  Net deferred tax assets are then reduced by a valuation allowance if Starz believes it 
more likely than not that such net deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Collaborative Arrangements

 As part of its production and acquisition activities, Starz has entered into collaborative arrangements.  A 
collaborative arrangement is a contractual arrangement that involves a joint operating activity.  These arrangements involve 
two (or more) parties who are both (a) active participants in the activity and (b) exposed to significant risks and rewards 
dependent on the commercial success of the activity.  A collaborative arrangement may provide that one participant has sole 
or primary responsibility for certain activities or that two or more participants have shared responsibility for certain activities.  
Starz records revenue and costs on a gross basis for activities for which it has been determined to be the principal and records 
revenue and costs on a net basis for activities for which it has been determined to be the agent.  Payments made to other 
participants are recorded as participation expense within production and acquisition costs in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations.  

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

 All derivatives, whether designated in hedging relationships or not, are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value.  
If the derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the derivative and of the hedged item 
attributable to the hedged risk are recognized in earnings. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective 
portions of changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) and are recognized 
in the statement of operations when the hedged item affects earnings. Ineffective portions of changes in the fair value of cash 
flow hedges are recognized in earnings. If the derivative is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the 
derivative are recognized in earnings.  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

 The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade accounts receivable, trade accounts payable, 
accrued liabilities and due to affiliates approximates fair value, due to their short maturity.  See Note 6 for information 
concerning the fair value of Starz’s debt instruments.
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Foreign Currency Translation

 The functional currency of Starz is the U.S. dollar.  The functional currency of Starz’s foreign operations is the 
applicable local currency for each foreign subsidiary.  Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated at the spot 
rate in effect at the applicable reporting date and the related statements of operations are translated at the average exchange 
rates in effect during the applicable period. The resulting unrealized cumulative translation adjustment, net of applicable 
income taxes, is included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in member’s interest and 
noncontrolling interests and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.  

 Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded based on exchange rates at 
the time such transactions arise.  Subsequent changes in exchange rates result in gains and losses which are reflected in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations as unrealized (based on the applicable period-end exchange rate) or 
realized upon settlement of the transactions.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

 In October 2012, the Financial Accounting Standards Board amended the Accounting Standards Codification as 
summarized in Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2012-07-Entertainment-Films (Topic 926).  ASU 2012-07 eliminates 
the presumption that conditions leading to the write-off of unamortized film costs after the balance sheet date existed as of 
the balance sheet date.  The amendment also eliminates the requirement that an entity incorporate into fair value 
measurements used in the impairment tests, the effects of any changes in estimates resulting from the consideration of 
subsequent evidence if the information would not have been considered by market participants at the measurement date.  
ASU 2012-07 is effective for impairment assessments performed on or after December 15, 2012 and should be applied 
prospectively.  Starz does not believe that the amendment had any impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 - Discontinued Operations

 On March 3, 2011, Starz completed the sale of 92.5% of Starz Media Canada Co. (“Canada Co.”), located in 
Toronto, Ontario, to a Canadian investor group and recognized a loss on the sale of $12.1 million, before a tax benefit of $3.9 
million.  Subsequent to the sale, Starz maintains a 7.5% ownership interest, but does not have significant involvement with 
the ongoing operations of Canada Co.  Canada Co. develops and produces three-dimensional animated content on a for-hire 
basis. 

 The summarized statements of operations of Canada Co. for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 
included in discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations are as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Revenue $ — $ 1,354 $ 20,623
Operating expenses — (1,513) (12,182)
Advertising and marketing — (2) (103)
General and administrative — (114) (1,102)
Depreciation — (447) (1,773)

Operating income (loss) — (722) 5,463
Other expense — (61) (274)

Income (loss) before income taxes — (783) 5,189
Income tax benefit (expense) — 1,500 (1,874)

Net income $ — $ 717 $ 3,315
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Note 4 – Investment in Films and Television Programs, Net

 Investment in films and television programs, net consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2012 2011

Released film costs-theatrical, less amortization $ 3,650 $ 11,876
Film costs – television and DVD:

Released, less amortization 44,101 67,912
Completed, but not released 343 7,283
In production 128,535 91,570
Development and pre-production 5,044 5,301

$ 181,673 $ 183,942

 Approximately 88% of the unamortized film costs (theatrical, television and DVD) for released films of $47.8 
million at December 31, 2012 are expected to be amortized within three years.  Approximately $32.4 million of the costs of 
Released and Completed, but not released films of $48.1 million at December 31, 2012 are expected to be amortized during 
the next twelve months.  

As a result of changes in ultimate revenue estimates, Starz Distribution recognized impairments of investment in 
films and television programs totaling $17.2 million, $12.9 million and $46.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 
2011 and 2010, respectively.  Such impairments are included in production and acquisition costs in the consolidated 
statements of operations.

Note 5 - Property and Equipment, Net

 Property and equipment, net consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2012 2011

Building and support equipment $ 100,061 $ 139,368
Distribution equipment 91,824 95,423
Furniture, fixtures and other 15,277 15,115

207,162 249,906
Less accumulated depreciation (110,882) (151,375)

$ 96,280 $ 98,531

 The cost of satellite transponders under capital leases included in distribution equipment was $57.5 million and 
$60.5 million as of December 31, 2012, and 2011, respectively.  Accumulated depreciation for these transponders was $30.2 
million and $27.7 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  During 2012, Starz conducted a review of its fixed 
asset records and wrote-off $56.0 million of fully depreciated assets that are no longer in service.
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Note 6 - Debt

 Debt consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2012 2011

Senior Secured Credit Facilities (a) $ 5,000 $ 505,000
Senior Notes (b) 500,000 —
Transponder capital leases (c) 34,805 40,044
Total debt 539,805 545,044
Less current portion of debt (4,134) (4,129)
Debt $ 535,671 $ 540,915

(a) On November 16, 2011, Starz, LLC entered into a credit agreement that provides a $1,000 million revolving credit 
facility, with a $50 million sub-limit for standby letters of credit, and $500.0 million of term loans (the “Senior 
Secured Credit Facilities”).  At closing, Starz, LLC borrowed $500 million under the term loan facility and $5 
million under the revolving credit facility.  Net proceed from the Senior Notes and cash on hand were used to repay 
and terminate the term loans in September 2012.  Borrowings under the revolving credit facility may be prepaid at 
any time and from time to time without penalty other than customary breakage costs.  Any amounts prepaid on the 
revolving credit facility may be reborrowed.  The revolving credit facility is scheduled to mature on November 16, 
2016. 

Interest on each loan under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities is payable at either an alternate base rate or LIBOR 
at Starz, LLC’s election.  Borrowings that are alternate base rate loans bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the 
alternate base rate plus a margin that varies between 0.50% and 1.50% depending on the consolidated leverage 
ratio, as defined in the Senior Secured Credit Facilities.  The alternate base rate is the highest of (a) the Prime Rate, 
(b) the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus ½ of 1% or (c) LIBOR for a one-month interest period plus 1%.   
Borrowings that are LIBOR loans bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the applicable LIBOR plus a margin 
that varies between 1.50% and 2.50% depending on the consolidated leverage ratio. The Senior Secured Credit 
Facilities require Starz, LLC to pay a commitment fee on any unused portion under the revolving credit facility.  
The commitment fee varies between 0.25% and 0.50%, depending on the consolidated leverage ratio.

As of December 31, 2012, the following borrowings and related LIBOR interest rates were outstanding under the 
Senior Secured Credit Facilities (dollars in thousands): 

LIBOR period: Interest Rate Loan Amount
December 2012 – January 2013 1.9617% $5,000

The Senior Secured Credit Facilities contain certain covenants that include restrictions on, among others, incurring 
additional debt, paying dividends or making certain distributions, investments and other restricted payments, liens, 
guarantees and investments.  In addition, Starz, LLC must comply with certain financial covenants including a 
consolidated leverage ratio, as defined in the agreement.  As of December 31, 2012, Starz, LLC is in compliance 
with all covenants under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities.
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(b) On September 13, 2012, Starz, LLC and Starz Finance Corp. co-issued $500.0 million aggregate principal amount 
of Senior Notes, due September 15, 2019.  The Senior Notes bear interest at a rate of 5.0% payable semi-annually 
on September 15 and March 15 of each year.  The Senior Notes are guaranteed by Starz Entertainment.  Starz, LLC 
used the net proceeds and cash on hand to repay and terminate the $500.0 million term loan under our Senior 
Secured Credit Facilities.  During the first quarter of  2013, Starz, LLC completed an exchange offer for the Senior 
Notes and co-issued an additional $175.0 million 5.0% senior notes (see Note 15 – Subsequent Events).

The Senior Notes rank equally in right of payment to all existing and future senior obligations and existing and 
future subordinated obligations.  The Senior Notes are effectively subordinated to any existing and future secured 
obligations and to all the liabilities of the subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes contain certain covenants that include restrictions on, among others, incurring additional debt, 
paying dividends or making certain distributions, investments and other restricted payments, liens, guarantees and 
investments.  As of December 31, 2012, Starz, LLC is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Notes.

(c) Starz Entertainment has entered into capital lease agreements for its transponder capacity.  The agreements expire 
during 2018 to 2021 and have an imputed annual interest rates ranging from 5.5% to 7.0%.

 Debt maturities for the next five years and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2013 $ 6,228
2014 6,228
2015 6,228
2016 11,228
2017 6,228
Thereafter 512,346

Total minimum payments 548,486
Less: amounts representing interest (8,681)

Present value of debt payments 539,805
Less: current portion of debt obligations (4,134)

Long-term portion of debt obligations $ 535,671

 At December 31, 2012, the fair value of the Senior Notes was $517.8 million and was based upon quoted prices in 
active markets.  Starz believes the fair value of the remaining debt approximates its carrying value as of December 31, 2012 
due to its variable rate nature and Starz’s stable credit spread. 

 Amounts totaling $2.2 million, $2.0 million and $2.0 million in interest costs have been capitalized as investment in 
films and television programs during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Note 7 – Accrued Liabilities

 Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2012 2011

Royalties, residuals and participations $ 72,139 $ 46,692
Participations payable to TWC 23,861 56,201
Program rights payable 57,125 65,600
Advertising and marketing 38,779 39,381
Payroll and related costs 23,657 22,380
Accrued compensation related to long term incentive plan 3,195 33,854
Other 37,306 40,042

$ 256,062 $ 304,150

 Approximately 85% of accrued royalties, participations and residuals of $72.1 million at December 31, 2012 are 
expected to be paid during the next twelve months.
Note 8 – Related Party Transactions

Due to Affiliates

 Prior to the Spin-Off, Starz, LLC participated in Old LMC’s employee benefit plans (medical, dental, life insurance, 
etc.) and will participate in Starz’s plans following the Spin-off.  Charges from Old LMC related to these benefits and other 
miscellaneous charges are included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations and aggregated $12.5 million, $12.4 million and $12.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 
2010, respectively.  Such amounts were invoiced by Old LMC on a monthly basis and were due upon receipt of the invoice 
by Starz, LLC.  Amounts due to affiliate for such charges totaled $1.0 million and $3.6 million as of December 31, 2012 and 
2011, respectively.

 Due to affiliates at December 31, 2012 and 2011 also includes $38.5 million and $50.2 million respectively for 
amounts owed to Old LMC for income tax obligations.

Contributions from (Distributions to) Affiliate

 Starz, LLC is a single member LLC, which is treated as an entity that is disregarded as being separate from Old 
LMC/Starz for U.S. federal income tax purposes.  As such, Starz, LLC is included in the consolidated federal and state 
income tax returns of Old LMC prior to the Spin-Off.  Prior to 2011, Starz, LLC’s subsidiary Starz Media was subject to a 
separate tax sharing agreement with Old LMC.  As a result, the tax benefits of losses generated by Starz Media were not 
included in the calculation of Starz, LLC’s tax obligation to Old LMC.  Accordingly, Starz, LLC’s tax payments to Old LMC 
prior to 2011 were in excess of what Starz, LLC’s consolidated tax obligation would have been if Starz Media was included 
in the tax calculation.  Such excess payments of $75.2 million are reflected as distributions to parent in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of cash flows and consolidated statements of member’s interest and noncontrolling interests.  

 As a result of the sale of the 25% interest to TWC in January 2011, Starz Media is now a separate taxpayer for 
federal purposes and in certain states.  During the year ended December 31, 2011, Starz, LLC’s tax liability to Old LMC was 
reduced by $36.6 million due to the overpayment of 2010 tax sharing obligations which were treated as a distribution to 
affiliate in 2010.  Such reduction is reflected as a contribution from affiliate in the accompanying consolidated statement of 
member’s interest and noncontrolling interests. 

 During 2006, Starz, LLC entered into two notes receivable totaling $489.1 million with Liberty Media LLC, a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Old LMC.  Such notes were classified in member’s interest.  Starz, LLC distributed the notes 
receivable to Liberty Media LLC on September 30, 2010 in connection with a corporate reorganization.  Starz, LLC did not 
recognize interest on the notes receivable.
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Note Payable due to Affiliate

 On December 28, 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Starz Media, entered into a note agreement with Liberty 
Media LLC to fund the operating needs of this subsidiary.  Such note bore interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 4.0%.  On 
September 30, 2010, Liberty Media LLC contributed its receivable under the note agreement aggregating $363.6 million to 
Starz, LLC in connection with a corporate reorganization.  Such note agreement was canceled on October 1, 2011.  See Note 
6 for interest capitalized as investment in films and television programs.

Mezzanine Debt due to Affiliate

 On January 2, 2008, Overture Films entered into a $50.0 million, six year secured term credit facility (the “Overture 
Mezzanine Debt”) with Liberty Media LLC.  The Overture Mezzanine Debt was used to fund certain costs and working 
capital associated with the production or acquisition of theatrical films.  On September 30, 2010, Liberty Media LLC 
contributed its receivable under the Overture Mezzanine Debt aggregating $62.7 million to Starz, LLC in connection with a 
corporate restructuring.  Interest on each loan under the Overture Mezzanine Debt was payable at LIBOR plus 10.00% per 
annum.  Such note agreement was canceled in August 2012.  See Note 6 for interest capitalized as investment in films and 
television programs.

Related Party

 As discussed previously, on January 28, 2011, Starz, LLC sold a 25% interest in Starz Media to TWC.  In December 
2010, Anchor Bay Entertainment entered into a five-year license agreement with TWC for the distribution, by the Home 
Video and Digital Media businesses, of certain of TWC’s theatrical releases.  Starz recognized participation expense of $60.8 
million, $72.1 million and none, which is included in production and acquisition costs in the accompanying statement of 
operations, for TWC’s share of the net proceeds under the license agreement, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 
and 2010, respectively.  Starz’s accrued advances payable to TWC totaled $23.9 million and $56.2 million, which is included 
in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  Starz 
Entertainment guarantees Anchor Bay Entertainment’s advance payments to TWC under this agreement up to $50.0 million.

Note 9 – Stock Options, Long Term Incentive Plan and Phantom Stock Appreciation Rights
  
 Stock Options – Pursuant to an Old LMC incentive plan, Old LMC granted to certain of Starz’s employees stock 
options to purchase former Liberty Starz common stock and restricted shares of Liberty Starz common stock. In November 
2011, Old LMC exchanged each share of outstanding Series A Liberty Starz common stock for 0.88129 of a share of Old 
LMC’s Series A Liberty Capital common stock (“LMCA”). The outstanding Liberty Starz restricted stock was also 
exchanged for LMCA restricted stock using the same ratio.  An adjustment was made to the strike price of and number of 
shares (using the same ratio) subject to each outstanding stock option to purchase shares of Liberty Starz common stock. The 
exchange of stock options and restricted stock was considered a modification of the previous award, however, the impact to 
compensation expense was not significant.

 On December 4, 2012 (the “Grant Date”),  pursuant to the approval of the Compensation Committee of its Board of 
Directors, Old LMC effected the acceleration of each unvested in-the-money option to acquire shares of LMCA held by 
certain of its and its subsidiaries’ officers (collectively, the “Eligible Optionholders”), including one executive officer of 
Starz, LLC.  Following this acceleration, also on the Grant Date, each Eligible Optionholder exercised, on a net settled basis, 
substantially all of his or her outstanding in-the-money vested and unvested options to acquire LMCA shares (the “Eligible 
Options”) (collectively, the “Exchange”), and:

• with respect to each vested Eligible Option, Old LMC granted the Eligible Optionholder a vested new option 
with substantially the same terms and conditions as the exercised vested Eligible Option, except that the 
exercise price for the new option is the closing price per LMCA share, as applicable, on The Nasdaq Global 
Select Market on the Grant Date; and

• with respect to each unvested Eligible Option:

the Eligible Optionholder sold to Old LMC the shares of LMCA received upon exercise of such unvested 
Eligible Option on the Grant Date for cash equal to the closing price of LMCA on The Nasdaq Global 
Select Market on the Grant Date;
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Each Eligible Optionholder used the proceeds of that sale to purchase from Old LMC at that price an equal 
number of restricted LMCA shares, as applicable, which have a vesting schedule identical to that of the 
exercised unvested Eligible Option; and

Old LMC granted the Eligible Optionholder an unvested new option, with substantially the same terms and 
conditions as the exercised unvested Eligible Option, except that (a) the number of shares underlying the 
new option is equal to the number of shares underlying such exercised unvested Eligible Option less the 
number of restricted shares purchased from Old LMC as described above and (b) the exercise price of the 
new option is the closing price of LMCA on The Nasdaq Global Select Market on the Grant Date.

 Starz recognized $20.0 million (including $5.8 million of expense related to the Exchange), $6.9 million and $4.3 
million during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively of compensation expense related to vested 
stock options and restricted stock.  As of December 31, 2012, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to the 
unvested stock options and restricted stock was approximately $44.7 million.  Such amount will be recognized in Starz’s 
consolidated statements of operations over a weighted average period of approximately 2.4 years.

 The historical awards granted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows:

Options
Granted

Weighted
Average 

Grant-Date 
Fair Value

2012 Awards:

Stock options - LMCA 688,000 $40.12

Stock options - LMCA issued in the Exchange 482,535 $42.36

Restricted stock - LMCA 58,110 $105.56

 2011 Awards:

Stock options - LMCA 100,000 $32.60

Stock options - Series A Liberty Starz Common Stock 496,000 $21.36

Restricted stock - Series A Liberty Starz Common Stock 11,655 $77.52

 2010 Awards:

Stock options - Series A Liberty Starz Common Stock 208,500 $16.17

Restricted stock - Series A Liberty Starz Common Stock — —

 The 2012, 2011 and 2010 stock option awards vest quarterly over a 4 year period and have a term of 7 years, except 
with respect to certain of the Exchange options which have a term of 10 years.  Starz calculates the grant-date fair value for 
the stock options using the Black-Scholes Model.  The expected term used in the Black-Scholes calculation was a range of 
4.5 to 7.08 years for the 2012 awards, 4.4 years for the 2011 awards and 4.6 years for the 2010 awards.  The expected 
volatility was a range of 37.5% to 54.2% for the 2012 awards, 31.9% for the Liberty Starz grants and 54.2% for the LMCA 
grants for the 2011 awards and 33.6% for the 2010 awards.  The expected volatility used in the calculation for the awards is 
based on the historical volatility of Old LMC’s LMCA, Starz and Capital tracking stocks and the implied volatility of LMC’s 
publicly traded options.  Starz uses a zero dividend rate as Starz has not historically declared dividends and a range of risk-
free rates of 0.5% to 1.0% for the 2012 awards, 0.7% to 1.9% for the 2011 awards and 2.2% to 2.4% for the 2010 awards 
which are derived from U.S. Treasury Bonds with a term similar to that of the subject options.  The grant-date fair value of 
the 2012 outstanding restricted shares of 58,110 was based on the market value of the Series A Liberty Starz common stock 
related to the unvested LMCA options which they were exchanged for as follows: 3,100 restricted shares at $105.56, 43,546 
restricted shares at $105.56 and 11,464 restricted shares at  $105.56 per share.  The grant-date fair value of the 2011 
outstanding restricted shares of 11,655 was based on the market value of the Series A Liberty Starz common stock at the grant 
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date of $77.52 per share. Of the 58,110 restricted shares granted in 2012, 46,646 will vest on December 31, 2013 and 11,464 
will vest quarterly through December 15, 2015.  The 2011 grant of restricted shares vest annually over three years.

 The following table presents the number and weighted average exercise price (“WAEP”) of the historical Liberty 
Starz stock options prior to the conversion in November 2011 to LMCA stock options:

Options WAEP
Outstanding at January 1, 2010 600,000 $ 61.53

Granted 208,500 $ 51.04
Exercised (3,310) $ 51.03
Forfeited (10,439) $ 51.03
Expired/cancelled — $ —

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 794,751 $ 59.41
Granted 496,000 $ 72.92
Exercised (8,683) $ 52.63
Forfeited (31,626) $ 64.78
Expired/cancelled — $ —
Liberty Starz conversion to LMCA (1,250,442) $ 57.56

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 — $ —

 The following table presents the number and WAEP of LMCA stock options after the conversion from Liberty Starz 
stock options in November 2011:

Options WAEP
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 — $ —

Liberty Starz conversion to LMCA 1,101,922 $ 65.31
Granted 100,000 $ 73.45
Exercised (275) $ 57.90
Forfeited — $ —
Expired/cancelled — $ —

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 1,201,647 $ 65.99
Granted 688,000 $ 90.49
Exercised (166,316) $ 73.13
The Exchange, Granted 482,535 $ 105.56
The Exchange, Exercised (540,645) $ 63.37
Forfeited (49,510) $ 83.27
Expired/cancelled — $ —

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,615,711 $ 93.14

Exercisable at December 31, 2012 520,540 $ 95.84

 At December 31, 2012 the weighted-average remaining contractual term of the outstanding options is 6.1 years and 
the exercisable options is 6.2 years.

 Long Term Incentive Plan - Starz granted incentive units to certain officers and key employees (“Plan Participants”) 
under the 2006 long term incentive plan (“2006 LTIP”).  Such grants vest over a period of four years.  Compensation under 
the 2006 LTIP is computed based on the vested percentage of units granted and a formula based on a multiple of earnings 
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, adjusted for certain net assets or liabilities of Starz Entertainment, as 
defined.  During 2010, Starz amended the LTIP to freeze the value of the 2006 LTIP units at the value calculated as of 
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December 31, 2009.  All amounts accrued under the 2006 LTIP are payable in cash, Old LMC common stock or a 
combination thereof at specified dates through 2013.  

 Starz recognized none, $0.2 million and $3.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, of compensation expense related to the 2006 LTIP.  During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, 
Starz made payments of $33.4 million, $7.7 million and $46.6 million, respectively, to certain Plan Participants under the 
2006 LTIP.  Starz has accrued $3.2 million as of December 31, 2012 related to the 2006 LTIP, which is included in accrued 
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

 PSARs – Starz had fully vested outstanding Phantom Stock Appreciations Rights (“PSAR”) held by its founder and 
former chief executive officer.  Effective September 30, 2009, the founder and former chief executive officer elected to 
exercise all of his remaining PSARs.  In December 2010, Starz paid $149.6 million in cash to settle the PSARs which was 
determined by a valuation process as described in the PSAR agreement.  Prior to this valuation process, the value of the 
PSARs was based on the estimated fair value of Starz Entertainment, as adjusted for certain assets and liabilities as defined, 
utilizing a discounted cash flow model.  Starz recognized none, none and $33.7 million of compensation expense during the 
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to these PSARs.

 Overture Long Term Incentive Plan - In November 2006, Starz established the Overture LTIP to provide long term 
compensation to secure loyal and continued services and promote profitability and efficiency within Overture Films.  As 
previously noted, Starz ceased operations at Overture Films in July 2010. Starz determined that the units have no value due to 
the valuation of Overture Films at the time it ceased operations and as of the 2012 valuation date provided in the Overture 
LTIP.  Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2010, Starz eliminated the previously recorded liability of $1.6 
million related to 14.24 outstanding units Starz recognized credits to compensation expense related to the Overture LTIP of 
none, none and $1.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Starz has no further 
obligations to grantees under the Overture LTIP.   

Note 10 - Income Taxes

 Starz is a holding company with no assets, liabilities or operations other than those of Starz, LLC.  Starz, LLC is a 
single member LLC, which is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes and is included in the 
consolidated federal and state income tax returns of Old LMC prior to the Spin-Off.  The income tax accounts and provisions 
included in these consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if Starz was a stand-alone federal and state 
taxpayer.

 Income tax expense consists of the following (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Current:
Federal $ 141,537 $ 122,505 $ 38,117
State and local 4,580 10,018 2,715
Foreign 1,758 2,643 4,978

147,875 135,166 45,810
Deferred:

Federal (21,782) 34,423 48,590
State and local 4,372 2,600 4,364

(17,410) 37,023 52,954
Income tax expense $ 130,465 $ 172,189 $ 98,764
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 Income tax expense differs from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% as a 
result of the following (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Computed expected tax expense $ 133,959 $ 145,630 $ 88,985
State and local income taxes, net of federal income taxes 10,162 8,000 4,168
Foreign taxes, net of foreign tax credit 832 1,024 (563)
Noncontrolling interest - partnership investment 1,297 — —
Change in valuation allowance affecting tax expense 76,933 (223,992) 5,974
Taxable liquidation of subsidiary (101,299) — —
Change in subsidiary tax status 9,018 — —
Expiration of capital loss — 241,934 —
Other, net (437) (407) 200

Income tax expense $ 130,465 $ 172,189 $ 98,764

 Effective April 1, 2012, Starz Media filed an election to convert itself from a LLC treated as a corporation to a 
partnership for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes. As a result of the conversion, Starz recognized a capital loss on 
the deemed liquidation of Starz Media. Based on the relevant accounting literature, Starz had not previously recorded a 
benefit for the tax basis in the stock of Starz Media. The capital loss of $101.3 million (as tax effected) is being carried 
forward and is recorded as a long term deferred tax asset. Starz does not believe that it is more likely than not that it would be 
able to generate capital gains to utilize any of this capital loss carryforward as a stand-alone taxpayer and as such, has 
recorded a full valuation allowance against this capital loss.

 In addition, under current U.S. federal and state tax law, LLC’s treated as partnerships are not subject to income tax 
at the entity level. As such, the election to convert Starz Media to partnership treatment for income tax purposes resulted in 
the reversal of deferred tax assets related to Starz Media’s deductible temporary differences of $16.1 million and the reversal 
of a valuation allowance offsetting these deferred tax assets of $16.1 million. Also, a deferred tax asset of $7.1 million was 
recorded for the initial difference between the book basis and the tax basis of Starz, LLC’s investment in the Starz Media 
partnership as of April 1, 2012
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 The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below (in thousands): 

December 31,
2012 2011

Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss and credit carryforwards $ 155,861 $ 56,682
Accrued stock compensation 5,575 19,301
Investments 25,516 6,747
Deferred revenue — 1,588
Intangible assets 1,163 —
Other future deductible amounts 219 24,752
Deferred tax assets 188,334 109,070
Valuation allowance (155,861) (78,141)
Deferred tax assets, net 32,473 30,929

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment (18,807) (23,070)
Intangible assets — (8,053)
Other future taxable amounts (454) —
Deferred tax liabilities (19,261) (31,123)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ 13,212 $ (194)

 The net increase in the valuation allowance was $77.8 million in 2012.  The gross change in the valuation allowance 
that affected tax expense was $76.9 million.

 Starz’s ability to utilize its foreign income tax credit carryforwards is dependent on Starz generating foreign-source 
taxable income.  Based on management’s assessment of projected foreign source taxable income and available tax planning 
strategies, Starz does not believe that it is more likely than not that it will utilize the foreign income tax credit carryforward 
deferred tax asset before it expires.  As such, Starz has recorded a valuation allowance of $17.2 million and $15.1 million 
related to those credit carryforwards as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  

 Starz has generated net operating losses in certain foreign and state jurisdictions in which Starz operates.  Because 
Starz’s ability to utilize these losses is dependent on it generating future taxable income in these jurisdictions, Starz does not 
believe that it is more likely than not that it will utilize these losses.  As such, Starz has recorded a valuation allowance of 
$1.7 million and $5.9 million related to those foreign and state net operating losses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.

 Starz has a capital loss carryforward deferred tax asset of $137.0 million and $35.7 million as of December 31, 2012 
and 2011, respectively, that Starz does not believe that it is more likely than not that it will utilize.  As such, Starz has 
recorded a valuation allowance of $137.0 million and $35.7 million related to these capital loss carryforwards as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.  

 The election to convert Starz Media to partnership treatment for income tax purposes resulted in the reversal of 
deductible temporary differences of $21.4 million as of December 31, 2011, including the $16.1 million as discussed above, 
and the reversal of the valuation allowance offsetting these deductible temporary differences.
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Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

Programming Rights

Starz has entered into an exclusive long-term licensing agreement for theatrically released films from the Walt 
Disney Company (“Disney”) through 2015. The agreement provides Starz with exclusive pay TV rights to exhibit qualifying 
theatrically released live-action and animated feature films under the Disney, Touchstone, Pixar and Marvel labels. 
Theatrically released films produced by DreamWorks are not licensed to Starz under the agreement. In addition, we are 
obligated to pay programming fees for all qualifying films that are released theatrically in the U.S. by Sony Pictures 
Entertainment Inc.’s (“Sony”) Columbia Pictures, Screen Gems, Sony Pictures Classics and TriStar labels through 2021, 
subject to certain limitations.  On February 11, 2013, Starz announced a new, multi-year output licensing agreement for 
theatrically released motion pictures from Sony that extends its relationship with Sony through 2021.  The previous 
agreement had covered motion pictures released theatrically through 2016. The programming fees to be paid to Disney and 
Sony are based on the quantity and domestic theatrical exhibition receipts of qualifying films. Starz has also entered into 
agreements with a number of other motion picture producers and is obligated to pay fees for the rights to exhibit certain films 
that are released by these producers.

 The unpaid balance for film rights related to films that were available at December 31, 2012 is reflected in accrued 
liabilities and in other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  As of December 31, 2012, such liabilities 
aggregated approximately $58.6 million and are payable as follows: $57.1 million in 2013 and $1.5 million in 2014.  

 Under the agreements with Disney and Sony, Starz is obligated to pay fees for the rights to exhibit films that have 
been released theatrically, but are not available for exhibition by Starz until some future date.  The estimated amounts payable 
under Starz’s programming license agreements, including the Disney and Sony agreements, which have not been accrued as 
of December 31, 2012, are as follows: $325.0 million in 2013; $101.4 million in 2014; $71.7 million in 2015; $63.8 million 
in 2016, $64.0 million in 2017 and $265.7 million thereafter.

 Starz is also obligated to pay fees for films that have not yet been released in theaters. Starz is unable to estimate the 
amounts to be paid under these agreements for films that have not yet been released in theaters; however, such amounts are 
expected to be significant. 

 Total amortization of program rights was $617.8 million, $611.0 million and $611.6 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  These amounts are included in programming costs in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations.

Operating Leases

 Starz leases office facilities, back-up transponder capacity, and certain other equipment under operating lease 
arrangements.  Rental expense under such arrangements amounted to $7.1 million, $6.6 million and $7.9 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Such amounts are included in operating expenses and general and 
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
 
 The future minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases, net of subleases, at December 31, 2012 are as 
follows (in thousands): 

2013 $ 6,123
2014 5,595
2015 5,025
2016 3,709
2017 780
Thereafter 1,700

$ 22,932
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Foreign Currency Hedge Contracts

 Starz has entered into foreign currency hedge contracts to manage its foreign currency risk in connection with 
certain original programming series produced in South Africa.  Starz has committed to pay US$14.3 million for ZAR119.6 
million during 2013.

Guarantees

 Canada Co. entered into an agreement with the Ontario government whereby Canada Co. is eligible to receive funds 
under the Canadian Next Generation of Jobs Fund Grant (“NGOJF”) through the termination date of March 31, 2014.  The 
maximum amount of the grant available and the guarantee is $23.1 million.  Starz Entertainment entered into a guarantee for 
any amounts owed to the Ontario government under the grant if Canada Co. does not meet its obligations.  The Ontario 
government can demand payment from Starz Entertainment if Canada Co. does not perform any of its obligations.  The 
maximum potential amount payable under the guarantee is $10.7 million at December 31, 2012 and Starz has accrued $8.5 
million related to this guarantee in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 
2012.  As discussed in Note 3, Starz sold its controlling interest in Canada Co. on March 3, 2011.  The terms of the guarantee 
have not changed.

 Starz Entertainment is the guarantor on two noncancelable operating leases in which an affiliate within each of the 
Starz Distribution and Starz Animation businesses is the tenant.  The maximum potential amount payable under these 
guarantees is $13.0 million at December 31, 2012.  Starz Entertainment does not currently expect to have to perform under 
these obligations.  The leases expire in 2014 and 2016.

Legal Proceedings

 On March 9, 2011, Starz Entertainment notified DISH Network L.L.C. (“DISH”) that DISH breached its affiliation 
agreement with Starz Entertainment by providing a free preview for one year of eight of the Starz and Encore channels to a 
substantial number of DISH customers without Starz Entertainment’s written approval. On May 3, 2011, Starz Entertainment 
filed a lawsuit against DISH in Douglas County, Colorado District Court, 18th Judicial District, alleging that DISH breached 
its affiliation agreement with Starz Entertainment in connection with such free preview and seeking damages for breach of 
contract. On May 2, 2011, Disney Enterprises, Inc. filed a lawsuit against DISH in connection with the same free preview in 
U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York, seeking damages for copyright infringement. In addition, on 
July 19, 2011, FX Networks filed a separate lawsuit against DISH and Starz Entertainment in connection with the same free 
preview in Los Angeles County, California Superior Court, seeking damages for tortious interference with its contracts for 
studio movie content. DISH filed a counterclaim against Starz Entertainment in the first lawsuit, seeking indemnification 
from Starz Entertainment against Disney Enterprises, Inc. in the second lawsuit and against FX Networks in the third lawsuit. 
The first lawsuit by Starz Entertainment against DISH is expected to go to trial in April 2013. The third lawsuit by FX 
Networks is presently stayed and is tentatively set for trial in October 2013. The resolution of these matters and its potential 
impact on Starz is uncertain at this time.

 In the normal course of business, Starz is subject to lawsuits and other claims.  While it is not possible to predict the 
outcome of these matters, it is the opinion of management, based upon consultation with legal counsel, that the ultimate 
disposition of known proceedings, other than as discussed above, will not have a material adverse impact on our consolidated 
financial position, results of operations or liquidity. 
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Note 12 – Other Information

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

 The following table presents the supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 11,624 $ 2,679 $ 3,776
Cash paid for income taxes $ 161,404 $ 44,793 $ 120,706
Change in deferred tax assets due to sale of noncontrolling interest

(Note 10) $ 2,209 $ 141,135 $ —
Retirement of fully depreciated assets $ 55,970 $ 1,699 $ 4,296
Contribution of notes receivable from affiliate (Note 8) $ — $ — $ 426,254
Distribution of notes receivable to affiliate (Note 8) $ — $ — $ 489,134

Assets Measured at Fair Value

 For assets required to be reported at fair value, GAAP provides a hierarchy that prioritizes inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted market prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are 
inputs, other than quoted market prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 Starz’s assets measured at fair value are as follows (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011

Description Total

Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 

for 
identical 

assets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
unobserva
ble inputs 
(Level 3) Total

Quoted 
prices in 

active 
markets 

for 
identical 

assets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
other 

observable 
inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
unobserva
ble inputs 
(Level 3)

Cash equivalents $662,681 662,681 — — $931,433 931,433 — —

Substantially all of our cash equivalents are invested in U.S. Treasury securities, other government securities or 
government guaranteed funds, AAA rated money market funds and other highly rated commercial paper.  Such amounts are 
included in cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Allowance for Trade Receivables

 The following table presents the changes in the allowance for trade receivables.

Description

Balance at
beginning of

period

Charged to
costs and

expenses(1)
Charged to

other accounts Deductions(2)

Balance at
end of
period

Year ended December 31, 2012:
Reserves:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,173 $ (623) $ — $ (1,284) $ 266
Allowance for sales returns 36,162 83,214 — (84,597) 34,779
Total   $ 38,335 $ 82,591 $ — $ (85,881) $ 35,045
Year ended December 31, 2011:
Reserves:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 3,723 $ 426 $ — $ (1,976) $ 2,173
Allowance for sales returns 26,967 101,628 — (92,433) 36,162
Total   $ 30,690 $ 102,054 $ — $ (94,409) $ 38,335
Year ended December 31, 2010:
Reserves:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 5,094 $ 1,954 $ — $ (3,325) $ 3,723
Allowance for sales returns 29,134 75,126 — (77,293) 26,967
Total   $ 34,228 $ 77,080 $ — $ (80,618) $ 30,690

(1) Charges for doubtful accounts are included in general and administrative expense and charges for sales returns 
are recorded against revenue.

(2) Uncollectible accounts written off, foreign currency exchange rate and actual video returns.

Goodwill

 There were no changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, all of which relates to Starz Networks, during the years 
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.  As of December 31, 2012, the accumulated impairment loss was $1,722.1 million, of 
which $1,396.7 million relates to Starz Networks, $322.2 million to Starz Distribution and $3.2 million to Starz Animation.

Advertising and Marketing

 Starz’s total advertising costs were $80.6 million, $109.2 million and $147.4 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Total marketing costs were $25.1 million, $23.0 million and $28.0 million 
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation

 The balances of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments, net of income taxes, included in the 
consolidated statements of member’s interest and noncontrolling interests were $(4.5) million and ($4.4) million as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and represented the total amount of accumulated other comprehensive income as 
of each date.

Major Customers and Suppliers

 Two Starz Networks’ distributors accounted for 22% and 15% of Starz’s total revenue for the year ended 
December 31, 2012.  Two Starz Networks’ distributors accounted for 21% and 15% of Starz’s total revenue for the year 
ended December 31, 2011.  Two Starz Networks’ distributors accounted for 20% and 15% of Starz’s total revenue for the year 
ended December 31, 2010.  There were no other distributors or other customers that accounted for more than 10% of revenue 
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in any year.   These two distributors accounted for 42% and 41% of trade accounts receivable as of December 31, 2012 and 
2011, respectively.  Services are provided to these distributors pursuant to affiliation agreements with varying terms.  

 As discussed in Note 11, Starz has entered into agreements to license theatrically released films for our premium 
movie networks from studios owned by Disney (through 2015) and Sony (through 2021).  Films are available to Starz for 
exhibition generally 8-13 months after their theatrical release.

 In July 2010, Anchor Bay Entertainment outsourced substantially all of its home video distribution services, 
including DVD manufacturing and distribution to Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment LLC.  The term of the 
distribution agreement is from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015.  Previously, Anchor Bay Entertainment had outsourced 
substantially all of its home video distribution services, including DVD manufacturing and distribution, to Sony Pictures 
Home Entertainment, Inc.  

Foreign Operations

 Revenue generated outside of the U.S. represented 5%, 4% and 4% of consolidated revenue for each of the years 
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Net long-lived assets outside the U.S. were less than 1% as of 
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Note 13 – Information about Operating Segments

 Starz is primarily engaged in video programming and development, production, acquisition and distribution of 
entertainment content.  Starz evaluates performance and makes decisions about allocating resources to its operating segments 
based on financial measures such as Adjusted OIBDA.  Adjusted OIBDA is defined as:  revenue less programming costs, 
production and acquisition costs, home video cost of sales, operating expenses, advertising and marketing costs and general 
and administrative expenses.  Our chief operating decision maker uses this measure of performance in conjunction with other 
measures to evaluate the operating segments and make decisions about allocating resources among the operating segments.  
Starz believes Adjusted OIBDA is an important indicator of the operational strength and performance of its operating 
segments, including each operating segment’s ability to assist Starz in servicing its debt and fund investments in films and 
television programs. In addition, this measure allows management to view operating results and perform analytical 
comparisons and benchmarking between operating segments and identify strategies to improve performance. This measure of 
performance excludes stock compensation, long term incentive plan and phantom stock appreciation rights and depreciation 
and amortization that are included in the measurement of operating income pursuant to GAAP. Accordingly, Adjusted 
OIBDA should be considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for, operating income, income from continuing operations 
before income taxes, net income, net cash provided by operating activities and other measures of financial performance 
prepared in accordance with GAAP. Starz generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers 
were to third parties, that is, at current prices.
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 Starz’s reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different services. They are managed separately 
because each segment requires different technologies, content delivery methods and marketing strategies.  Starz identifies its 
reportable segments as those operating segments that represent 10% or more of its consolidated annual revenue, annual 
Adjusted OIBDA or total assets.  Starz Networks and Starz Distribution have been identified as reportable segments; however 
as Starz has only three operating segments, Starz Animation is also reported. 

 Performance Measures (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,   
2012 2011 2010

Revenue:
Starz Networks $ 1,276,815 $ 1,269,924 $ 1,224,136
Starz Distribution 320,671 310,927 367,477
Starz Animation 42,436 45,273 50,007
Inter-segment eliminations (9,226) (12,091) (36,283)

Total Revenue $ 1,630,696 $ 1,614,033 $ 1,605,337

Adjusted OIBDA:
Starz Networks $ 447,368 $ 427,689 $ 416,390
Starz Distribution (4,926) 4,567 (66,182)
Starz Animation (932) (850) (2,419)
Inter-segment eliminations 3,322 18,182 (12,136)

Total Adjusted OIBDA $ 444,832 $ 449,588 $ 335,653
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 Other Information (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Capitalized production and development spend:
Starz Networks $ 175,085 $ 144,494 $ 64,573
Starz Distribution 108,978 69,161 52,462
Starz Animation — — —
Inter-segment eliminations — — —

Total capitalized production and development spend $ 284,063 $ 213,655 $ 117,035

December 31,
2012 2011

Total assets:
Starz Networks $ 2,066,961 $ 2,357,580
Starz Distribution 118,134 162,659
Starz Animation 3,225 5,320
Other unallocated assets (primarily cash, deferred taxes and

other assets) 33,850 136,753
Inter-segment eliminations (46,120) (59,137)

Total assets $ 2,176,050 $ 2,603,175

 The following table provides a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to income from continuing operations before 
income taxes (in thousands):

For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Consolidated Adjusted OIBDA $ 444,832 $ 449,588 $ 335,653
Stock compensation, long term incentive plan and phantom stock 

appreciation rights (20,022) (7,078) (39,468)
Depreciation and amortization (19,406) (17,907) (20,468)
Interest expense, including amounts due to affiliate, net of amounts

capitalized (25,688) (5,012) (20,932)
Other expense, net 3,023 (3,505) (542)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 382,739 $ 416,086 $ 254,243

Note 14 – Supplemental Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Information

 As discussed previously, Starz, LLC and Starz Finance Corp. co-issued the Senior Notes which are fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed by Starz Entertainment.  Starz Media, Film Roman and other immaterial subsidiaries of Starz, 
LLC (“Starz Media and Other Businesses”) are not guarantors of the Senior Notes. 
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 As discussed previously, Starz’s historical financial information is deemed to be the financial information of Starz, 
LLC.  The financial statements of Starz reflect Starz, LLC on a historical cost basis.  The following tables set forth the 
consolidating financial information of Starz, which includes the financial information of Starz Entertainment, the guarantor:  

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information – As of December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 735,507 $ 879 $ 13,388 $ — $ 749,774
Trade accounts receivable, net 205,261 — 36,204 (50) 241,415
Program rights 341,255 — — (1,250) 340,005
Deferred income taxes 164 826 — — 990
Notes receivable from affiliates 26,067 — — (26,067) —
Other current assets 27,874 — 16,853 — 44,727

Total current assets 1,336,128 1,705 66,445 (27,367) 1,376,911
Program rights 344,042 — — (5,358) 338,684
Investment in films and television programs, net 143,583 — 38,090 — 181,673
Property and equipment, net 95,832 — 448 — 96,280
Deferred income taxes — 12,222 — — 12,222
Goodwill 131,760 — — — 131,760
Other assets, net 15,616 13,395 22,904 (13,395) 38,520
Investment in consolidated subsidiaries — 1,787,826 — (1,787,826) —

Total assets $ 2,066,961 $ 1,815,148 $ 127,887 $ (1,833,946) $ 2,176,050

Liabilities and Member’s Interest (Deficit) and
Noncontrolling Interests

Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt $ 4,134 $ — $ — $ — $ 4,134
Trade accounts payable 4,817 — 1,345 — 6,162
Accrued liabilities 136,434 8,235 128,059 (16,666) 256,062
Notes payable due to affiliate — — 26,067 (26,067) —
Due to (from) affiliates 20,902 20,111 3,694 (5,188) 39,519
Deferred revenue 18,859 — 5,989 (274) 24,574

Total current liabilities 185,146 28,346 165,154 (48,195) 330,451
Debt 535,671 505,000 — (505,000) 535,671
Deferred income taxes 13,060 (20,342) — 7,282 —
Other liabilities 4,259 — 8,643 (5,118) 7,784

Total liabilities 738,136 513,004 173,797 (551,031) 873,906

Member’s interest (deficit) 1,328,825 1,311,951 (45,789) (1,283,036) 1,311,951
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries — (9,807) (121) 121 (9,807)

Total member’s interest (deficit) and
noncontrolling interests 1,328,825 1,302,144 (45,910) (1,282,915) 1,302,144

Total liabilities and member’s interest
(deficit) and noncontrolling interests $ 2,066,961 $ 1,815,148 $ 127,887 $ (1,833,946) $ 2,176,050
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Consolidating Balance Sheet Information – As of December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 965,400 $ 125,261 $ 9,226 $ — $ 1,099,887
Restricted cash — — 4,896 — 4,896
Trade accounts receivable, net 204,457 — 36,865 (296) 241,026
Program rights 393,439 — — (5,141) 388,298
Deferred income taxes 8,616 1,498 — — 10,114
Notes receivable from affiliates 38,352 — — (38,352) —
Other current assets 18,961 — 12,375 — 31,336

Total current assets 1,629,225 126,759 63,362 (43,789) 1,775,557
Program rights 379,029 — — (5,477) 373,552
Investment in films and television programs, net 106,720 — 77,222 — 183,942
Property and equipment, net 95,968 — 2,563 — 98,531
Goodwill 131,760 — — — 131,760
Other assets, net 14,878 9,938 24,888 (9,871) 39,833
Investment in consolidated subsidiaries — 1,619,020 — (1,619,020) —

Total assets $ 2,357,580 $ 1,755,717 $ 168,035 $ (1,678,157) $ 2,603,175

Liabilities and Member’s Interest (Deficit) and
Noncontrolling Interests

Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt $ 4,129 $ — $ — $ — $ 4,129
Trade accounts payable 6,509 — 2,181 — 8,690
Accrued liabilities 170,939 938 140,433 (8,160) 304,150
Notes payable due to affiliate — — 38,352 (38,352) —
Due to (from) affiliates 427,650 (377,255) — 3,441 53,836
Deferred revenue 16,888 — 9,846 — 26,734

Total current liabilities 626,115 (376,317) 190,812 (43,071) 397,539
Debt 540,915 505,000 — (505,000) 540,915
Deferred income taxes 28,473 (16,067) — (2,098) 10,308
Other liabilities 7,261 — 9,443 (5,392) 11,312

Total liabilities 1,202,764 112,616 200,255 (555,561) 960,074

Member’s interest (deficit) 1,154,816 1,651,484 (32,195) (1,122,621) 1,651,484
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries — (8,383) (25) 25 (8,383)

Total member’s interest (deficit) and
noncontrolling interests 1,154,816 1,643,101 (32,220) (1,122,596) 1,643,101

Total liabilities and member’s interest
(deficit) and noncontrolling interests $ 2,357,580 $ 1,755,717 $ 168,035 $ (1,678,157) $ 2,603,175
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Consolidating Statement of Operations Information – For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Revenue:
Programming networks and other

services $ 1,305,052 $ — $ 127,337 $ (13,315) $ 1,419,074
Home video net sales 33,401 — 184,901 (6,680) 211,622

Total revenue 1,338,453 — 312,238 (19,995) 1,630,696

Costs and expenses:
Programming costs (including

amortization) 666,632 — — (5,475) 661,157
Production and acquisition costs

(including amortization) 34,958 — 157,279 103 192,340
Home video cost of sales 17,780 — 52,780 (6,680) 63,880
Operating expenses 18,887 — 45,788 (11,265) 53,410
Advertising and marketing 81,117 — 24,557 — 105,674
General and administrative 73,744 91 35,568 — 109,403
Stock compensation and long term 

incentive plan 18,804 — 1,218 — 20,022
Depreciation and amortization 13,068 — 6,338 — 19,406

Total costs and expenses 924,990 91 323,528 (23,317) 1,225,292

Operating income (loss) 413,463 (91) (11,290) 3,322 405,404

Other income (expense):
Interest expense, including amounts

due to affiliate, net of amounts
capitalized (25,552) (23,524) (136) 23,524 (25,688)

Interest income (expense), related
party 4,952 — (4,952) — —

Share of earnings of consolidated
subsidiaries — 248,799 — (248,799) —

Other income (expense), net 1,440 976 (1,509) 2,116 3,023
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes 394,303 226,160 (17,887) (219,837) 382,739

Income tax benefit (expense) (147,424) 26,114 1,187 (10,342) (130,465)

Net income (loss) 246,879 252,274 (16,700) (230,179) 252,274

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests — 2,210 96 (96) 2,210

Net income (loss) attributable
to member $ 246,879 $ 254,484 $ (16,604) $ (230,275) $ 254,484
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Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss) Information – For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Net income (loss) $ 246,879 $ 252,274 $ (16,700) $ (230,179) $ 252,274

Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes:
Foreign currency translation

adjustments from continuing
operations — (73) (73) 73 (73)

Other comprehensive loss — (73) (73) 73 (73)

Comprehensive income (loss) 246,879 252,201 (16,773) (230,106) 252,201

Comprehensive loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — 2,167 96 (96) 2,167

Comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to member $ 246,879 $ 254,368 $ (16,677) $ (230,202) $ 254,368
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Consolidating Statement of Operations Information – For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Revenue:
Programming networks and other

services $ 1,287,826 $ — $ 98,416 $ (14,101) $ 1,372,141
Home video net sales 27,389 — 219,981 (5,478) 241,892

Total revenue 1,315,215 — 318,397 (19,579) 1,614,033

Costs and expenses:
Programming costs (including

amortization) 672,525 — — (21,276) 651,249
Production and acquisition costs

(including amortization) 23,938 — 136,161 (1,310) 158,789
Home video cost of sales 14,296 — 53,622 (5,478) 62,440
Operating expenses 16,193 — 47,287 (9,777) 53,703
Advertising and marketing 91,314 — 40,869 — 132,183
General and administrative 71,399 338 34,344 — 106,081
Stock compensation and long term 

incentive plan 6,603 — 475 — 7,078
Depreciation and amortization 12,757 — 5,150 — 17,907

Total costs and expenses 909,025 338 317,908 (37,841) 1,189,430

Operating income (loss) 406,190 (338) 489 18,262 424,603

Other income (expense):
Interest expense, including amounts

due to affiliate, net of amounts
capitalized (2,849) (2,282) (2,163) 2,282 (5,012)

Interest income (expense), related
party 4,395 — (4,395) — —

Share of earnings of consolidated
subsidiaries — 241,759 — (241,759) —

Other income (expense), net (10,575) 93 546 6,431 (3,505)
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes 397,161 239,232 (5,523) (214,784) 416,086

Income tax expense (147,877) (8,232) (6,099) (9,981) (172,189)

Income (loss) from continuing
operations 249,284 231,000 (11,622) (224,765) 243,897

Loss from discontinued operations
(including loss on sale of $12,114),
net of income taxes — 5,411 (12,897) — (7,486)

Net income (loss) 249,284 236,411 (24,519) (224,765) 236,411

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests — 3,273 525 (525) 3,273

Net income (loss) attributable
to member $ 249,284 $ 239,684 $ (23,994) $ (225,290) $ 239,684
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Consolidating Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss) Information – For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Net income (loss) $ 249,284 $ 236,411 $ (24,519) $ (224,765) $ 236,411

Other comprehensive loss, net of taxes:
Foreign currency translation

adjustments from continuing
operations — (529) (529) 529 (529)

Foreign currency translation
adjustments from discontinued
operations — (5,946) (5,946) 5,946 (5,946)

Other comprehensive loss — (6,475) (6,475) 6,475 (6,475)

Comprehensive income (loss) 249,284 229,936 (30,994) (218,290) 229,936

Comprehensive loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — 3,447 681 (681) 3,447

Comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to member $ 249,284 $ 233,383 $ (30,313) $ (218,971) $ 233,383
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Consolidating Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) Information – For the Year Ended
December 31, 2010

(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Revenue:
Programming networks and other

services $ 1,234,712 $ — $ 176,667 $ (31,030) $ 1,380,349
Home video net sales 12,766 — 214,775 (2,553) 224,988

Total revenue 1,247,478 — 391,442 (33,583) 1,605,337

Costs and expenses:
Programming costs (including

amortization) 665,271 — — (17,454) 647,817
Production and acquisition costs

(including amortization) 18,760 — 159,194 — 177,954
Home video cost of sales 7,279 — 65,089 (2,553) 69,815
Operating expenses 16,077 — 59,293 (2,110) 73,260
Advertising and marketing 66,682 — 108,735 — 175,417
General and administrative 66,308 — 59,113 — 125,421
Stock compensation, long term 

incentive plan and phantom stock 
appreciation rights 40,900 — (1,432) — 39,468

Depreciation and amortization 14,007 — 6,461 — 20,468
Total costs and expenses 895,284 — 456,453 (22,117) 1,329,620

Operating income (loss) 352,194 — (65,011) (11,466) 275,717

Other income (expense):
Interest expense, including amounts

due to affiliate, net of amounts
capitalized (1,202) — (19,730) — (20,932)

Share of earnings of consolidated
subsidiaries — 129,269 — (129,269) —

Other income (expense), net 1,310 — (1,852) — (542)
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes 352,302 129,269 (86,593) (140,735) 254,243

Income tax benefit (expense) (131,416) 31,399 (3,039) 4,292 (98,764)

Income (loss) from continuing
operations 220,886 160,668 (89,632) (136,443) 155,479

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of income taxes — (1,874) 5,322 (133) 3,315

Net income (loss) 220,886 158,794 (84,310) (136,576) 158,794

Other comprehensive income (loss), net
of taxes:
Foreign currency translation

adjustments from continuing
operations — 1,167 1,167 (1,167) 1,167

Foreign currency translation
adjustments from discontinued
operations — (1,172) (1,172) 1,172 (1,172)

Comprehensive income (loss) $ 220,886 $ 158,789 $ (84,315) $ (136,571) $ 158,789
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Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows’ Information – For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 246,879 $ 252,274 $ (16,700) $ (230,179) $ 252,274
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 13,068 — 6,338 — 19,406
Amortization of program rights 623,264 — — (5,475) 617,789
Program rights payments (458,243) — — 1,685 (456,558)
Amortization of investment in films and

television programs 29,998 — 111,555 — 141,553
Investment in films and television programs (175,085) — (108,978) — (284,063)
Stock compensation and long term incentive 

plan 18,804 — 1,218 — 20,022
Payments of long term incentive plan (33,410) — — — (33,410)
Share of earnings of consolidated subsidiaries — (248,799) — 248,799 —
Deferred income taxes (9,535) (17,255) — 9,380 (17,410)
Other non-cash items 12,423 5,057 3,850 (16,797) 4,533
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Current and other assets 6,480 — (4,475) (246) 1,759
Due to / from affiliates 16,311 (29,000) 5,493 1,559 (5,637)
Payables and other liabilities 14,676 7,297 18,572 (8,726) 31,819

Net cash provided by operating activities 305,630 (30,426) 16,873 — 292,077
Investing activities – purchases of property and

equipment (15,972) — (242) — (16,214)
Financing activities:

Borrowings of debt — 500,000 — — 500,000
Payments of debt (4,029) (500,000) — — (504,029)
Debt issuance costs — (8,514) — — (8,514)
Distributions to parent (100,000) (500,000) — — (600,000)
Distributions to parent related to stock 

compensation (4,689) — — — (4,689)
Borrowings under notes payable to affiliate (39,892) — 39,892 — —
Repayments under notes payable to affiliate 51,987 — (51,987) — —
Net advances to / from affiliate (414,379) 414,558 (179) — —
Minimum withholding of taxes related to stock 

compensation (12,953) — (320) — (13,273)
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation 4,401 — — — 4,401
Settlement of derivative instruments 3 — — — 3

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities (519,551) (93,956) (12,594) — (626,101)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents — — 125 — 125

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (229,893) (124,382) 4,162 — (350,113)

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 965,400 125,261 9,226 — 1,099,887
End of year $ 735,507 $ 879 $ 13,388 $ — $ 749,774

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 198 $ 11,290 $ 136 $ — $ 11,624
Cash paid for income taxes $ 156,836 $ — $ 4,568 $ — $ 161,404
Change in deferred tax assets due to sale of 

noncontrolling interest $ — $ 2,209 $ — $ — $ 2,209
Retirement of fully depreciated assets $ 53,608 $ — $ 2,362 $ — $ 55,970
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Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows’ Information – For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 249,284 $ 236,411 $ (24,519) $ (224,765) $ 236,411
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Loss (income) from discontinued operations — (5,411) 12,897 — 7,486
Depreciation and amortization 12,757 — 5,150 — 17,907
Amortization of program rights 632,317 — — (21,276) 611,041
Program rights payments (564,375) — — 10,034 (554,341)
Amortization of investment in films and

television programs 20,145 — 105,957 — 126,102
Investment in films and television programs (144,494) — (69,028) (133) (213,655)
Stock compensation and long term incentive 

plan 6,603 — 475 — 7,078
Payments of long term incentive plan (7,696) — — — (7,696)
Share of earnings of consolidated subsidiaries — (241,759) — 241,759 —
Deferred income taxes 25,758 13,363 — (2,098) 37,023
Other non-cash items 1,382 253 (299) 9,678 11,014
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Current and other assets 3,482 — (26,549) (6,034) (29,101)
Due to / from affiliates 80,081 (2,228) 9,466 1,952 89,271
Payables and other liabilities 14,711 951 2,888 (9,117) 9,433

Net cash provided by operating activities 329,955 1,580 16,438 — 347,973
Investing activities – purchases of property and

equipment (7,554) — (169) — (7,723)
Financing activities:

Borrowings of debt — 505,000 — — 505,000
Payments of debt (3,907) — (55,263) — (59,170)
Debt issuance costs — (10,191) — — (10,191)
Cash advance to / from affiliate 374,128 (374,128) — — —
Borrowings under notes payable to affiliate (103,236) — 103,236 — —
Repayments under notes payable to affiliate 72,359 — (72,359) — —
Net advances to / from affiliate (2,502) — 2,502 — —
Contribution from noncontrolling owner of

subsidiary — 3,000 — — 3,000
Settlement of derivative instruments — — (2,863) — (2,863)
Restricted cash — — 8,226 — 8,226

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 336,842 123,681 (16,521) — 444,002

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents — — (17) — (17)

Net cash provided by discontinued operations — — — — —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 659,243 125,261 (269) — 784,235
Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year 306,157 — 9,495 — 315,652
End of year $ 965,400 $ 125,261 $ 9,226 $ — $ 1,099,887

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 683 $ 1,238 $ 758 $ — $ 2,679
Cash paid for income taxes $ 41,782 $ — $ 3,011 $ — $ 44,793
Change in deferred tax assets due to sale of

noncontrolling interest $ — $ 141,135 $ — $ — $ 141,135
Retirement of fully depreciated assets $ — $ — $ 1,699 $ — $ 1,699
Push down of debt from parent $ 494,826 $ (494,826) $ — $ — $ —
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Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows’ Information – For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
(in thousands)

Starz
Entertainment, 

LLC
(Guarantor)

Starz Media
and Other
Businesses

(Non-Guarantors)

Starz, LLC
Parent Only
(Co-Issuer) Eliminations

Consolidated
Starz

Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 220,886 $ 158,794 $ (84,310) $ (136,576) $ 158,794
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net

cash provided by operating activities:
Loss (income) from discontinued operations — 1,874 (5,322) 133 (3,315)
Depreciation and amortization 14,007 — 6,461 — 20,468
Amortization of program rights 629,069 — — (17,454) 611,615
Program rights payments (561,276) — — 28,710 (532,566)
Amortization of investment in films and

television programs 15,688 — 101,240 — 116,928
Investment in films and television programs (64,573) — (52,462) — (117,035)
Stock compensation, long term incentive plan 

and phantom stock appreciation rights 40,900 — (1,432) — 39,468
Payments of phantom stock appreciation rights

and long term incentive plan (196,232) — — — (196,232)
Noncash interest on debt due to affiliate — — 16,313 — 16,313
Share of earnings of consolidated subsidiaries — (129,269) — 129,269 —
Deferred income taxes 59,513 (6,559) — — 52,954
Other non-cash items 57 — 7,043 (4,292) 2,808
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Current and other assets (12,801) — 18,840 3,471 9,510
Due to / from affiliates (48,258) 50,381 (3,677) — (1,554)
Payables and other liabilities 4,123 — 12,121 (3,261) 12,983

Net cash provided by operating activities 101,103 75,221 14,815 — 191,139
Investing activities – purchases of property and

equipment (6,720) — (379) — (7,099)
Financing activities:

Borrowings of debt — — 129,343 — 129,343
Payments of debt (3,700) — (198,335) — (202,035)
Net advances to / from affiliate (35,812) — 35,812 — —
Distributions to parent — (75,221) — — (75,221)
Contribution from parent — — 15,000 — 15,000
Contribution from noncontrolling owner of

subsidiary — — 500 — 500
Settlement of derivative instruments — — (6,301) — (6,301)
Restricted cash — — 10,300 — 10,300

Net cash used in financing activities (39,512) (75,221) (13,681) — (128,414)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents — — 59 — 59
Net cash provided by discontinued operations — — 1,072 — 1,072

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 54,871 — 1,886 — 56,757
Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning of year 251,286 — 7,609 — 258,895
End of year $ 306,157 $ — $ 9,495 $ — $ 315,652

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 1,202 $ — $ 2,574 $ — $ 3,776
Cash paid for income taxes $ 118,636 $ — $ 2,070 $ — $ 120,706
Retirement of fully depreciated assets $ 476 $ — $ 3,820 $ — $ 4,296
Contribution of notes receivable from affiliate $ — $ — $ 426,254 $ — $ 426,254
Distribution of notes receivable to affiliate $ — $ — $ 489,134 $ — $ 489,134
(Distribution)/contribution of due from affiliate $ (39,885) $ — $ 39,885 $ — $ —
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Note 15 – Subsequent Events

 In connection with the Spin-Off, Old LMC, now Starz entered into several agreements with Liberty Spinco, now 
New LMC, or New LMC’s affiliated companies:

• a Reorganization Agreement, dated as of January 10, 2013, by and between Starz and New LMC, which 
provides for, among other things, the principal corporate transactions required to effect the Spin-Off, certain 
conditions to the Spin-Off and provisions governing the relationship between Starz and New LMC with respect 
to and resulting from the Spin-Off;

• a Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2013, between Starz and New LMC, which governs the 
allocation of taxes, tax benefits, tax items and tax-related losses between Starz and New LMC;

• a Services Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2013, by and between Starz and New LMC, which governs the 
provision by New LMC to Starz and by Starz to New LMC of specified services and benefits following the 
Spin-Off;

• a Facilities Sharing Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2013, by and between Starz and Liberty Property 
Holdings, Inc. (a subsidiary of New LMC, “LPH”), pursuant to which Starz shares office facilities with New 
LMC;

• two Aircraft Time Sharing Agreements, each dated as of January 11, 2013, by and between Starz and New 
LMC, which govern the lease for each of two aircraft from New LMC to Starz and the provision of fully 
qualified flight crew for all operations on a periodic, non-exclusive time sharing basis; and

• a Commercial Lease, dated as of January 11, 2013, by and between LPH, Starz, LLC, and, for the limited 
purposes described therein, Starz Entertainment, pursuant to which Starz, LLC will lease its headquarters 
building that was distributed to New LMC in connection with the Spin-Off from LPH for a period of ten years, 
with successive five-year renewal periods at the option of Starz, LLC.  Starz, LLC has recorded a $44.8 million 
capital lease in connection with this lease agreement.

During 2013, in accordance with the terms of the Senior Notes, Starz, LLC completed an exchange offer, 
exchanging the majority of the Senior Notes for new registered Senior Notes.  The new registered Senior Notes are 
substantially identical to the original Senior Notes, except the new registered Senior Notes are registered under the Securities 
Act of 1933, and the transfer restrictions and registration rights, and related special interest provisions applicable to the 
original Senior Notes will not apply to the new registered Senior Notes.

On February 8, 2013, Starz, LLC and Starz Finance Corp. completed the issuance of an additional $175.0 million 
5.0% senior notes (the “New Notes”), which were issued as additional notes under the indenture governing the Senior Notes.  
The net proceeds from the issuance of the New Notes were used to repay indebtedness under Starz, LLC’s senior secured 
revolving credit facility.  Starz, LLC and Starz Finance Corp. have agreed to file a registration statement with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission related to a registered offering to exchange the New Notes for new registered notes having 
substantially identical terms as the New Notes.
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Note 16 – Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The unaudited quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows (in 
thousands):

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2012:
Revenue $ 404,964 $ 402,562 $ 400,970 $ 422,200
Operating income $ 120,003 $ 100,271 $ 99,508 $ 85,622
Income from continuing operations $ 79,195 $ 69,608 $ 55,282 $ 48,189
Net income attributable to member $ 77,782 $ 68,725 $ 56,424 $ 51,553

2011:
Revenue $ 390,128 $ 402,996 $ 388,330 $ 432,579
Operating income $ 124,800 $ 111,863 $ 100,700 $ 87,240
Income from continuing operations $ 69,518 $ 63,483 $ 60,087 $ 50,809
Net income attributable to member $ 67,037 $ 62,352 $ 60,110 $ 50,185

As discussed in Note 4 – Investment in Films and Television Programs, Net, due to changes in ultimate revenue 
estimates, Starz Distribution recognized impairments of investment in films and television programs totaling $17.2 million 
and $12.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, all of which were recognized in the 4th 
quarter of each year.
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* * * * * * * 

Starz and related channels and service marks are the property of Starz Entertainment, LLC. 

 

“Spartacus: War of the Damned” © 2013 Starz Entertainment, LLC. All rights reserved. 

“The White Queen” © 2013 Company Television Limited. All rights reserved. 

“Boss” © MMXII Lions Gate Television Inc. All rights reserved. 

“Da Vinci’s Demons” © 2013 Tonto Films and Television Limited. All rights reserved. 

“Magic City” © 2013 Starz Entertainment, LLC. All rights reserved. 

“Black Sails” © 2014 Starz Entertainment, LLC. All rights reserved. 

Brave © Disney/Pixar. All rights reserved. 

“The Walking Dead” © 2012 AMC Film Holdings, LLC. All rights reserved. 

My Week With Marilyn © 2011 The Weinstein Company LLC.  All rights reserved. 

The Amazing Spider-Man © 2012 Columbia Pictures Industries Inc. All rights reserved. Marvel, and the 
names and distinctive likenesses of Spider-Man and all other Marvel characters: TM and © 2012 Marvel 
Entertainment, LLC and its subsidiaries. All rights reserved. 

The Girl with the Dragon Tattoo © 2011 Columbia Pictures Industries, Inc. 

Ides of March © 2011 Ides Film Holdings, LLC. 

Pirates of the Caribbean: On Stranger Tides © Disney Enterprises Inc. All rights reserved. 
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